

# Sessional Information Digest 1987–88



# **HOUSE OF COMMONS**

# SESSIONAL INFORMATION DIGEST 1987–88

Compiled in the Public Information Office, Department of the Library, House of Commons January 1989



### INTRODUCTION

The Sessional Information Digest has been published for each parliamentary session since 1983–84. Copies of the Digest for 1983–84 and 1984–85 are available free of charge from the Public Information Office, House of Commons, London, SW1A OAA. From 1985–86 onwards the Digest has been published by Her Majesty's Stationery Office. Subscribers to the Weekly Information Bulletin automatically receive copies, the price being covered by the annual subscription.

Although the Sessional Information Digest is in some ways a cumulation of material from the Weekly Information Bulletin, it is recommended that users retain their Bulletin files, as full bibliographical details are not given here, in order to save space. In this respect the Digest forms an index and companion to the Bulletin, as well as providing information unavailable elsewhere.

I am grateful to Kay Lawrie for typesetting this **Digest,** and to the Journal Office for providing certain unpublished data for Section A.

Pamela Bozdan January 1989

# CONTENTS

Section A.	BUSINESS OF THE SESSION	Page
	1. Sittings of the House and dates of Session	1
	2. Parliamentary Questions	2
	3. Opposition Days	3
	4. Private Members' Motions	4
	5. Use of the Guillotine	5
	6. Estimates Days	6
	7. Government substantive motions	6
	8. Standing Order No 20	7
	9. Divisions	7
	10. Early day motions	7
Section B:	THE WORK OF COMMITTEES	
	Departmental Select Committees: their work and Reports	8
	2. Other Select Committees	15
	Subject listing of reports of Departmental Select     Committees	21
	4. 'Matters' discussed by standing committees	22
Section C:	LEGISLATION	
	Complete list of Public Bills and their stages in both Houses	23
	2. Private Legislation	34
	3. Church of England Measures	37
	4. Northern Ireland Legislation	38
	5. Public and General Acts receiving Royal Assent	40
	6. Local and Personal Acts receiving Royal Assent	41
	7. Public Bills - some basic figures	42
Section D:	DOCUMENTATION	
	Subject index to White Papers and Policy Documents	43
	Subject index to Green Papers and Consultation     Documents	44
	3. Factsheets	56
Section E:	MEMBERSHIP OF THE HOUSE	
	1. State of the Parties	57
	2. By elections and new Members	57
	3. Delegations to international assemblies	58
	Members who are also Members of the European Parliament	58
	5. Complete list of Maiden Speeches since June 1987	59

### SITTINGS OF THE HOUSE AND DATES OF SESSION

The House sat on every Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday during the following periods (all dates inclusive).

25 June 1987 - 24 July 1987 21 October 1987 - 18 December 1987 11 January 1988 - 31 March 1988 12 April 1988 - 29 April 1988 3 May 1988 - 27 May 1988 7 June 1988 - 29 July 1988 19 October 1988 - 5 November 1988

The House met also on 17, 18, 19 and 24 June 1987 for preliminary business, ie the election of the Speaker and swearing-in of Members.

The total number of sitting days was 218. The House sat for 1,978 hours and 40 minutes and the average length of daily sitting (including Fridays) was 9 hours.

### Analysis of the time of the session Total time spent (hours:mintues) Type of Business Addresses, other than Prayers 40:02 (including debate on Queen's Speech) Government Bills a) Second Reading debate (Bills committed to a Standing Committee) b) Second Reading debate (Bills committed to a Committee of the 147:10 31:19 Whole House) Committee of the Whole House 59:05 Consideration (Report stage) 266:52 Third Reading 27:49 Lords Amendments 74:30 g) Allocation of Time Orders h) Committal motion 19:10 00:47 Private Members' Bills 3. a) Second Reading 30:02 b) Other stages 28:26 67:30 4. Private Business 5. Government motions a) European Community Documents 47:15 Business motions c) General 78:44 Opposition Days 113:03 Private Members' Motions a) Substantive motions (Ballotted, etc) b) Motions for the introduction of Ten Minute Rule Bills 14:13 8. Adjournment a) Government debates on motions for the Adjournment 117:36 b) Debates on motions for Recess adjournments (SO No 22) 15:10 Last day before Recesses 23:32 After proceedings on Consolidated Fund Bills (SO No 54) 51:42 Emergency debates (SO No 20) 3:13 100:28 f) Daily (at end of business) 12:33 Estimates Money Resolutions 10. 11. Ways and Means Resolutions (including Budget Debate) 19:30 12. Statutory Instruments and Measures a) Affirmative Resolutions (except NI) 130:38

13. Prayers against statutory instruments etc

25:57

Type	of	Business		Total time spen (hours:minutes)
14.	a) b) c) d) e) f) g) h) i)	Oral Questions Private Notice Questions Statements Business statements SO No 20 Applications Points of Order and Speaker's Rulings Privilege Presentation of Public Petitions Miscellaneous		154:20 11:52 78:53 29:48 5:22 21:15 1:13 3:35 20:04
			Daily Prayers	17:20
			SESSIONAL TOTA	L 1,978:40

Note: The time taken up by Divisions is included with the class of business upon which the divisions were called.

SECTION A2

### **PARLIAMENTARY QUESTIONS**

Statistics of Parliamentary Questions are available in two forms. The figures for each, which for various reasons (mainly owing to methods of counting and recording) are not exactly comparable, are as follows:

### Questions appearing on the Order Paper calculated by the Journal Office

Put down for Oral Answer Put down for priority Written Answer	24,940 26,976
Put down for non-priority Written Answer	20,750
Total	70.000

(Not more than about a quarter of all questions put down for Oral Answer will receive such an answer - the rest are answered in writing).

### Questions appearing in Hansard, and indexed in the Parliamentary On-line Information System (POLIS).

Oral replies (including Written replies	ng supplementaries)*	8,560 54,307
Total		62,867

<sup>\*</sup>Calculating on the basis of the average number of supplementaries from members other than the original questioner, the figure for Questions actually answered orally works out at roughly 2,700. With POLIS, a very few Questions may be counted twice.

The total number of private notice questions (excluding Business Questions) was 39.

### SECTION A3

### OPPOSITION DAYS

Date	Subject of debate	Day no
26.10.87	Firearms	1 (Part 1)
26.10.87	Education	1 (Part 2)
5.11.87	Financial markets	2
17.11.87	Transport	3
23.11.87	*Future government of Scotland	4
26.11.87	Financial pressures on National Health Service hospitals	5
2.12.87	Real economy	6 (Part 1)
2.12.87	Health and safety at work	6 (Part 2)
19.1.88	National Health Service	7
27.1.88	Government of Scotland	8
29.2.88	South Africa	9 (Part 1)
29.2.88	British science	9 (Part 2)
27.4.88	Housing benefit changes	10
11.5.88	Seamen's dispute with P & O	11
19.5.88	Shipbuilding	12 (Part 1)
23.5.88	Housing	12 (Part 2)
8.6.88	Takeover bid for Rowntree plc	13 (Part 1)
8.6.88	Takeover of Rover Group by British Aerospace plc	13 (Part 2)
22.6.88	Housing and planning	14
23.6.88	Deprivation and disadvantage in Wales	15
5.7.88	Threat to a universal free health service	16
6.7.88	**Political situation in Scotland	17 (Part 1)
6.7.88	***Pensioners	17 (Part 2)
12.7.88	Growing divide between rich and poor in London	18 (Part 1)
12.7.88	Public provision for sport for all	18 (Part 2)
26.7.88	Housing benefit	19 (Part 1)
26.7.88	Safety of and service to the travelling public	19 (Part 2)
25.10.88	State of the economy	+

Liberal Party motion
Scottish National Party motion
Social & Liberal Democrats motion
This was an additional Opposition Day. The 20th allotted Opposition Day (at the disposal of the leader of the second largest opposition party) was carried over to the 1988-89 session.

### PRIVATE MEMBERS' MOTIONS

Date	Member moving	Subject of debate
17.7.87	Winston Churchill	Police manpower and inner city policing
13.11.87	Ivor Stanbrook	Commonwealth and South Africa
20.11.87	Kevin Barron	Coalfield areas and communities
27.11.87	Clive Soley	Freedom of the press
4.12.87	William Shelton	Cyprus
14.12.87	Bob Clay	Unemployment and its effect on inner city areas and residents
15.2.88	Robert Jones	Self-employment
19.2.88	Malcolm Moss	Rural development
19.2.88	Timothy Wood	High technology industry
26.2.88	Gwilym Jones	Transplant notification procedures
26.2.88	James Couchman	Property Services Agency
4.3.88	Nigel Forman	Government's Enterprise Initiative
11.3.88	Patrick Thompson	Engineering
18.3.88	Michael Fallon	Competition policy
18.3.88	Stephen Day	*Economy of the North West
16.5.88	Sydney Chapman	Planning controls
13.6.88	Alan Meale	Mining subsidence

<sup>\*</sup> debate of less than one hour's duration

### **USE OF GUILLOTINE**

The Guillotine (or allocation of time order) was used on six bills during the session. The details are as follows:

<u>Bill</u>	Date of Guillotine motion	Stages Guillotined	Stage reached when Guillotined	Further Time allowed
Education Reform	1.2.88	Comm, Rep & 3R	43 clauses from 147 discussed in SC	SC to report by 3,3,88; 3 days for Rep & 3R
Education Reform	17.2.88	Comm, Rep & 3R	95 clauses from 147 discussed in SC	SC to report by 8.3.88; 4 days for Rep & 3R
Local Government Finance	22.2.88	Comm, Rep & 3R	16 clauses from 131 discussed in SC	SC to report by 24.3.88; 4 days for Rep & 3R
Social Security	14.3.88	Lords amendments	Lords amendments	Lords amendments to be completed by 14.3.88
Firearms (Amendment)	25.5.88	Rep & 3R	Report	Rep & 3R to be completed by 25.5.88
Education Reform	18.7.88	Lords amendments	Lords amendments	Lords amendments to be completed by 19.7.88
Local Government Finance	20.7.88	Lords amendments	Lords amendments	Lords amendments to be completed by 20.7.88
Firearms (Amendment)	2.11.88	Lords amendments	Lords amendments	Lords amendments to be completed by 2.11.88
School Boards (Scotland)	11.11.88	Lords amendments	Lords amendments	Lords amendments to be completed by 11.11.88
Housing	11.11.88	Lords amendments	Lords amendments	Lords amendments to be completed by 11.11.88

### **ESTIMATES DAYS**

Standing Order No 52 provides that three days shall be allotted during each session for the consideration of Estimates (see Factsheet No 18). The subjects are set down by resolution of the Liaison Committee.

Date	No of allotted day	Estimate class no and Vote discussed	Principal Subject
8.3.88	1 (Part 1)	Class IV, vote 3	Storm damage of October 1987
8.3.88	1 (Part 2)	Class VI, vote 1	Coal industry
7.7.88	2	Class I, vote 1	Merchant shipping and civil aviation
21.7.88	3 (Part 1)	Class XIV, vote 1	NHS pay awards
21.7.88	3 (Part 2)	Class VII, vote 5	Adult employment and youth training

### SECTION A7

### **GOVERNMENT SUBSTANTIVE MOTIONS**

Date	Subject
6.7.87	Today newspaper
13.7.87	Sir Kenneth Bradshaw
21.7.87	Members' salaries and allowances
22.7.87	House of Commons Commission
27.10.87	Defence estimates
28.10.87	Defence estimates
10.11.87	House of Commons (Services) (Access to the precincts of the House)
26.11.87	Financial assistance to opposition parties
13.1.88	Committee of Selection (Special Report) (Scottish Affairs Committee)
14.1.88	Autumn Statement
20.1.88	Hong Kong
17.2.88	Inner London Education Authority
24.2.88	Public expenditure
7.3.88	Electricity privatisation
29.3.88	Televising of proceedings of the House (nomination of select committee)
20.4.88	Conduct of Mr R Brown
3.5.88	First Scottish Standing Committee
26.5.88	Gift to St Christopher and Nevis
21.6.88	Financial assistance to opposition parties
13.7.88	Short speeches
19.10.88	Defence estimates
20.10.88	Defence estimates
2.11.88	Broadcasting and terrorism
10.11.88	Immigration guidelines

SECTION A8

### STANDING ORDER NO 20

Standing Order No 20 allows Members to suggest that a specific and important matter should have urgent consideration and that an emergency debate be held upon it. It is for the Speaker to decide whether the matter is sufficiently specific, important and urgent to warrant giving it precedence, and among other things to have regard to the probability of the matter being brought before the House by other means; the Chair in general gives leave very seldom. During the 1987–88 Session, there were 87 unsuccessful applications, and 1 successful (details below):

Date of debate

Member applying

Topic given precedence

13.4.88

Mr R Cook

Impact of changes in social security system

SECTION A9

### **DIVISIONS**

The total number of divisions during the Session was 496.

Note: During the report stage of the Firearms (Amendment) Bill on 25 May 1988, the Chair ruled, under Standing Order No 39, a division unnecessarily claimed 47 times.

SECTION A10

### EARLY DAY MOTIONS

The total number of 'early day motions' tabled during the session was 1,601. Factsheet No 30 on early day motions is available from the Public Information Office.

### SECTION B1

### DEPARTMENTAL SELECT COMMITTEES: THEIR WORK AND REPORTS

The following is a list of the select committees which are set up to examine the work of Government Departments, and which now constitute the main investigatory system by which the House oversees the exercise of Government responsibilities and development of public policy and expenditure.

The listing of each departmental committee includes its final membership, the reports issued during the 1987-88 session, Government observations received, and enquiries which were outstanding at Prorogation on 15 November 1988.

### AGRICULTURE

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerk: Mr Robson Members (11):

Wiggin, Mr Jerry (Chairman) Boswell, Mr Tim Jones, Mr Martyn Marland, Mr Paul Winterton, Mrs Ann

Alexander, Mr Richard MacDonald, Mr Calum Martlew, Mr Eric Curry, Mr David Mallon, Mr Seamus Morley, Mr Elliot

No	<u>Title</u>	Paper No	Govt response
1 Sp	Response by Govt to 1st Report 1986-87 (December Agreement)	HC 230	-
1	The Storm of 16 October 1987	HC 272	HC 533
2 Sp	Response by Govt to 1st Report, 1987-88	HC 533	
2	Chernobyl: the Government's reaction	HC 456	HC 682
3 Sp	Response by Govt to 2nd Report, 1987-88	HC 682	

### Enquiries not completed

1. Land use and forestry

### DEFENCE

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerks: Mr Rogers and Ms Helme Members (11):

Mates, Mr Michael (Chairman) Cartwright, Mr John McFall, Mr John McWilliam, Mr John Wilkinson, Mr John

Churchill, Mr Winston George, Mr Bruce Sayeed, Mr Jonathan Douglas, Mr Dick Hayhoe, Sir Barney Thorne, Mr Neil

No	Title	Paper No	Govt response
1 Sp	Govt replies to 1st, 3rd & 5th Reports 1986-87	HC 224	
1	Ethnic monitoring and the armed forces	HC 391	HC 584
2	Business appointments: acceptance of appointments in commerce and industry by members of the armed forces and officials of the Ministry of Defence	HC 392	HC 622
3	Progress of the Trident Programme	HC 422	HC 674
4	The defence requirement for merchant shipping and civil aircraft	HC 476	HC 674
5	The procurement of major defence equipment	HC 431	Cm 501
6	Future size and role of the Royal Navy's surface fleet	HC 309	Cm 443
7	Statement on the Defence Estimates 1988	HC 495	
2 Sp	Govt reply to 1st Report, 1987-88	HC 584	
8	British forces in Belize	HC 624	
9	Observations on Govt reply to 2nd Report, 1987-88	HC 622	
3 Sp	Govt replies to 3rd & 4th Reports, 1987-88	HC 674	11.54.63

### Enquiries not completed

- Defence policy and expenditure
- 2 Use of radioactive contaminants in military exercises
- 3. Review of recommendations of reports of previous Defence Committees

- Future of the Brigade of Gurkhas
  Protection of British shipping in the Persian Gulf
  Demountable Rack Off-loading and Pick-up System (DROPS) 6.

### EDUCATION, SCIENCE AND ARTS

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerk: Mr Poyser Members (11):

Raison, Mr Timothy (Chairman) Armstrong, Ms Hilary Greenway, Mr Harry McNair-Wilson, Mr Michael Vaughan, Sir Gerard

Evennett, Mr David Griffiths, Mr Win Steinberg, Mr Gerry Flannery, Mr Martin Hicks, Mrs Maureen Thornton, Mr Malcolm

No	<u>Title</u>	Paper No	Govt Response
1 Sp	Observations by Govt on 3rd Report, 1986-87 (Special educational needs: implementation of the Education Act 1981)	HC 214	
2 Sp	Observations by Govt on 3rd Report, 1985-86 (Achievement in primary schools)	HC 246	
1	Dept of Education & Science & Office of Arts & Libraries Expenditure Plans 1988-89 to 1990-91	HC 265	Cm 442 (Arts section only); Cm 490

### Enquiries not completed

- Resources available to the Dept of Education & Science to discharge its workload Work of the Office of Arts and Libraries
- Educational provision for the under-fives 3.
- 4. Prison education
- Supply of teachers for the 1990s Higher education 5.
- 6.

### **EMPLOYMENT**

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerk: Ms Milner-Barry Members (11):

Leighton, Mr Ron (Chairman) Coombs, Mr Simon Janner, Mr Greville Ross, Mr Ernie Young, Mr David

Eastham, Mr Ken Mills, Mr Iain Rowe, Mr Andrew

Goodhart, Sir Philip Paice, Mr James Stevens, Mr Lewis

No	<u>Title</u>	Paper No	Govt Response
1 Sp	Govt response to 1st Report, 1986-87 (Discrimination in Employment)	HC 221	of property
1	Dept of Employment's Estimates	HC 526	
2	Legionnaire's disease in the working environment	HC 524	
3	Employment effects of urban development corporations	HC 327	

### Enquiries not completed

- Employment patterns of the over-50s
- Legionnaire's disease in the working environment (continuing investigation) 2.
- Role in the labour market and impact on the economy of part-time work 3.
- Tourism 4.

### ENERGY

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerks: Mr Silk and Mr Stanton Members (11):

Lloyd, Sir Ian (	Chairman)
Brown, Mr Micl	hael
Illsley, Mr Eric	
Morgan, Mr Rh	odri
Moss, Mr Malc	olm

Clark, Dr Michael Leadbitter, Mr Ted Rost, Mr Peter

Dickens, Mr Geoffrey Lofthouse, Mr Geoffrey Salmond, Mr Alex

No	Title	Paper No	Govt Response
1 Sp	Govt observations on 2nd Report, 1986-87 (Standpipe distortion at Hinkley Point "A" power station & cost of decommissioning magnox reactors) and 3rd Report, 1986-87 (Effect of oil and gas prices on activity in North Sea)	HC 205	TOTAL SECTION
1	Electricity Generating Stations & Overhead Lines (Inquiries Procedure) Rules 1987	HC 310	
2	Spring supplementary estimate: assistance to the coal industry	HC 306	
3	Structure, regulation and economic consequences of electricity supply in the private sector	HC 307	HC 701
4	Dept of Energy's spending plans 1988-89	HC 513	HC 693
2 Sp	Govt observations on 4th Report, 1987-88	HC 693	-
3 Sp	Govt reply to 3rd Report, 1987-88	HC 701	-
5	Electricity supply in Northern Ireland	HC 679	

### Enquiries not completed

- Monitoring of associated public bodies UK independent oil sector UK/USSR energy relations
- 2.

### **ENVIRONMENT**

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerk: Mr Cranmer Members (11):

Rossi,	Sir Hugh (Chairm	lai
Belling	ham, Mr Henry	
Holt,	Mr Richard	
Mans,	Mr Keith	
Squire	, Mr Robin	

Boateng	, M	r Paul
Hunter,	Mr	Andrew
Pendry,	Mr	Tom

Cummings, Mr John Jones, Mr Robert Pike, Mr Peter

Series Corris

Yes

Arto, Foxe Sarb Wood

Squile	INI NODIII		
No	<u>Title</u>	Paper No	Govt Response
1 Sp	Observations by Govt on 1st Report, 1986-87 (Historic buildings and ancient monuments)	HC 268	- 1
2 Sp	Observations by Govt on 2nd Report, 1986-87 (Property Services Agency)	HC 269	-
1	Air pollution	HC 270	Cm 552
2	DOE main estimates 1988-89	HC 463	HC 642
3 Sp	Govt response to 3rd Report, 1986-87 (Pollution of rivers and estuaries)	HC 543	
3	Property Services Agency main estimates 1988-89	HC 516	HC 60, 1988-89
4 Sp	Govt observations on 2nd Report, 1987-88	HC 642	-

### Enquiries not completed

Toxic waste

### FOREIGN AFFAIRS

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerks: Mr Wilson and Mr Hutton Members (11):

Howell, Mr David (Chairman) Canavan, Mr Dennis Lester, Mr Jim Taylor, Mr Ian Welsh, Mr Michael

Jopling, Mr Michael Rowlands, Mr Ted Temple-Morris, Mr Peter Lawrence, Mr Ivan Shore, Mr Peter Wells, Mr Bowen

No	<u>Title</u>	Paper No	Govt Response
1	Famine in the Horn of Africa	HC 297	Cm 432
2	Current UK policy towards the Iran/Iraq conflict	HC 279	Cm 505
3	Political impact of the process of arms control and disarmament	HC 280	Cm 476
4	FCO/ODA expenditure 1988-89	HC 429	Cm 518

### Enquiries not completed

1. Future financing of the European Community

### HOME AFFAIRS

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerks: Mr Millar and Mr Lee Members (11):

Wheeler, Mr John (Chairman) Ashby, Mr David Fookes, Miss Janet Stanbrook, Mr Ivor Woodcock, Mr Mike

Bermingham, Mr Gerald Gale, Mr Roger Vaz, Mr Keith Clelland, Mr David Greenway, Mr John Worthington, Mr Tony

No	<u>Title</u>	Paper No	Govt Response
1	Government's Public Expenditure Plans 1988-89 to 1990-91 (including situation at Lunar House)	HC 340	Cm 442
1 Sp	Govt reply to 4th Report, 1986-87 (Contract Provision of Prisons)	HC 433	The same of the sa
2	Government's plans for radio broadcasting	HC 386	Cm 411
3	The future of broadcasting	HC 262	HC 737
4	Parliamentary accountability of the Police Complaints Authority	HC 583	
5	Previous recommendations	HC 621	
2 Sp	Govt reply to 3rd Report, 1987-88	HC 737	and the Description

### Enquiries not completed

1. Forensic science service

### SCOTTISH AFFAIRS

The Scottish Affairs Committee had not been set up by the close of the 1987-88 session.

### SOCIAL SERVICES

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerks: Ms Irwin and Mr Lloyd Members (11):

Field, Mr Frank (Chairman)
Hayes, Mr Jerry
Price, Sir David
Smyth, Rev Martin
Yeo, Mr Tim

Moonie, D	r Lewis	
Shephard,	Mrs Gillian	
Winterton,	Mr Nichola	S

Smith,	Mr	Andrew
Sims,	Mr	Roger
Wise,	Aud	Irey

No	Title	Paper No	Govt Response
1	Resourcing the National Health Service: short-term issues	HC 264	Cm 405
1 Sp	Observations by Govt on 2nd Report 1986-87 (Work in progress, Children in care)	HC 344	to move scored
2	Reaction of Her Majesty's Govt to 1st Report, 1987-88	HC 369	Cm 405
3	Resourcing the National Health Service: prospects for 1988-89	HC 547	Cm 542
4	Families on low income: low income statistics	HC 565	Cm 523
5	The future of the National Health Service	HC 613	
6	Public expenditure on the social services	HC 687	

### Enquiries not completed

- Resourcing the National Health Service Public expenditure on the social services Children in care

- 2. 3. 4. Low income

### TRADE AND INDUSTRY

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerks: Mr Kennon and Dr Seaward Members (11):

Warren, Mr Kenne Ashton, Mr Joe	eth (Chairman)
Crowther, Mr Star	1
Hampson, Dr Keit	h
Porter, Mr Barry	

Bruce,	Mr	Malcolm
Gilbert,	Dr	John
Hoyle,	Mr	Doug

Cran, Mr James Grant, Sir Anthony Maxwell-Hyslop, Mr Robin

No	<u>Title</u>	Paper No	Govt Response
1	UK motor components industry, supplementary report, including Govt response to 3rd Report, 1986-87	HC 316	
1 Sp	Monitoring the DTI	HC 343	
2	Petrol retailing in the UK	HC 384	HC 696
3	Petrol retailing in the UK: supplementary report	HC 696	

### Enquiries not completed

- Post Office
- Trade with Eastern Europe
- 1. 2. 3. 4. Acquisition by British Aerospace of the Government's holding in the Rover Group British Shipbuilders
- 5. Future of Girobank

### TRANSPORT

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerks: Mr Doherty and Miss Baker Members (11):

Marshall, Mr David (Chairman)
Aspinwall, Mr Jack
Callaghan, Mr Jim
Dunwoody, Mrs Gwyneth
Trotter, Mr Neville

Bevan	. Mr	David	Gilroy
McCrir	ndle,	Mr Ro	bert
Fry, M	r Pe	ter	

Bidwell	I, M	r Sydney
Dicks,	Mr	Terry
Mudd,	Mr	David

No	<u>Title</u>	Paper No	Govt Response
1 Sp	Govt observations on 1st Report, 1986-87 (Interim Report on the Decline in the UK-registered merchant fleet), 2nd Report, 1986-87 (Govt's Expenditure Plans for Transport 1987-88 to 1989-90) and 3rd Report, 1986-87 (Financing of Rail Services)	HC 420	100
1	Decline in the UK-registered merchant fleet	HC 303	HC 681
2	Government's Expenditure Plans for Transport 1988-89 to 1990-91	HC 442	
3	Airline competition: computer reservation systems	HC 461	HC 61, 1988-89
2 Sp	Govt observations on 1st Report, 1987-88	HC 681	-

### Enquiries not completed

- Air traffic control safety Roads for the future

### TREASURY AND CIVIL SERVICE

Nominated 24 November 1987 Committee Clerks: Mr Cubie and Mr Hamlyn Members (11):

Higgins, I	Mr Terence	(Chairman
Beaumon	t-Dark, Mr	Anthony
Hamilton,	Mr Neil	
Sedgemo	re, Mr Bria	an
	Mr David	

Beith, Mr Alan Quin, Ms Joyce Townend, Mr John

Budgen, Mr Nicholas Radice, Mr Giles Watts, Mr John

HC 494

Cm 524

### SUB-COMMITTEE

Appointed: 30 March 1988 Clerk: Mr Hamlyn Members (5):

	e, Mr Giles (Chairman) emore, Mr Brian	Higgins, Mr Terence Watts, Mr John	Quin, Ms	Joyce
No	<u>Title</u>		Paper No	Govt Response
1	Government's economic policy: 19	987 Autumn Statement	HC 197	
2	Government's Public Expenditure 1990-91	Plans 1988-89 to	HC 292	HC 439
3	European Commission's proposals of indirect taxation	s on the approximation	HC 248	HC 438
4	The 1988 Budget		HC 400	HC 541
1 Sp	Govt observations on 3rd Report,	1987-88	HC 438	100 mg
2 Sp	Govt observations on 2nd Report	, 1987-88	HC 439	-
5	European community finance		HC 358	
3 Sp	Govt observations on 4th Report,	1987-88	HC 541	
6	Financial reporting to Parliament		HC 614	Cm 375
7	Public expenditure and estimates		HC 506	

Civil service management reform: the next steps

### Enquiries not completed

- Future financing of the European Community International monetary co-ordination in the aftermath of the Louvre Accord

### WELSH AFFAIRS

Nominated 2 December 1987 Committee Clerk: Mr Harrison Members (11):

Wardell, Mr Gareth (Chairman) Bennett, Mr Nicholas Livsey, Mr Richard Raffan, Mr Keith Williams, Mr Alan

Gower, Sir Raymond Meyer, Sir Anthony Stradling Thomas, Sir John

Jones, Mr Gwilym Murphy, Mr Paul Thomas, Mr Dafydd Elis

No	Title	Paper No	Govt Response
1 Sp	Govt response to 2nd Report, 1986-7 (Control and repair of privately owned housing)	HC 261	and translate
2 Sp	Govt response to 1st Report, 1986-87 (Tourism in Wales)	HC 444	-
1	Government's Expenditure Plans 1988-89 to 1990-91	HC 397	Welsh Office Press Notice dated 7.7.88

### Enquiries not completed

Inward investment into Wales and its interaction with regional and EEC policies

### OTHER SELECT COMMITTEES

This section lists Select Committees, other than those set up under Standing Order No 130 to monitor the work of Government Departments (see Section B1) and those connected with private legislation.

The reports of these Committees are given below. For those which publish numerous reports of a periodical nature, an indication of the numbers involved only is given, but further details are available from the Public Information Office if required. Membership given is as at Prorogation on 15 November 1988.

### CONSOLIDATION ETC BILLS (JOINT COMMITTEE)

Committee Clerks: Ms Samson and Mr Keith Members (23):

### Nominated by the House of Lords 20 October 1987

Oliver of Aylmerton, Lord (Chairman) Ackner, Lord

Campbell of Alloway, Lord Hanworth, Viscount Milner of Leeds, Lord Airedale, Lord Gisborough, Lord Lloyd of Kilgerran, Lord Strabolgi, Lord Alexander of Tunis, Earl Grey, Earl Lockwood, Baroness

### Nominated by the House of Commons 22 July 1987

Allen, Mr Graham Bonsor, Sir Nicholas Cook, Mr Frank Waller, Mr Gary Ashby, Mr David Brown, Mr Nicholas Goodson-Wickes, Dr Charles Williams, Mr Alan W Body, Sir Richard Cash, Mr William Porter, Mr Barry

### Reports

[The Committee issued 3 Reports on consolidation bills. Details are available from the Public Information Office.]

### DARTFORD-THURROCK CROSSING BILL 1987-88

Committed: 9 July 1987 Committee Clerk: Miss Baker Members (7):

Chapman, Mr Sydney (Chairman) Couchman, Mr James Galloway, Mr George

Dicks, Mr Terry Morgan, Mr Rhodri Dover, Mr Den Reid, Dr John

Special Report: HC 213

### EUROPEAN LEGISLATION

Nominated 9 July 1987 Committee Clerk: Dr Ward Members (14):

Spearing, Mr Nigel (Chairman) Buckley, Mr George Haselhurst, Mr Alan Knowles, Mr Michael Marlow, Mr Tony Wells, Mr Bowen

Cash, Mr William Hicks, Mr Robert Knox, Mr David Meale, Mr Alan Wray, Mr Jimmy Dykes, Mr Hugh Hood, Mr Jimmy Madel, Mr David Squire, Mr Robin

### Reports

[The Committee considers European legislation and reports on a large number of items each year. There were 39 reports in the Session 1987-88, all published as serial parts of HC 43. Details are available from the Public Information Office.]

Report no

Subject

Paper no

1 Sp

Programme for the Commission for 1988

HC 421

### HOUSE OF COMMONS (SERVICES)

Nominated 3 November 1987 Committee Clerk: Mr Proctor Members (20):

Wakeham, Mr John (Chairman) Blackburn, Dr John Dobson, Mr Frank Hunt, Mr David Martin, Mr Michael Peacock, Mrs Elizabeth Rhodes James, Mr Robert Warren, Mr Kenneth

Cormack, Mr Patrick Faulds, Mr Andrew Irving, Mr Charles Montgomery, Sir Fergus Porter, Mr Barry Shepherd, Mr Colin Dixon, Mr Don Howells, Mr Geraint Lloyd, Sir Ian Orme, Mr Stanley Powell, Mr Ray Walley, Joan

は間は

CO

### HOUSE OF COMMONS (SERVICES): ACCOMMODATION AND ADMINISTRATION SUB-COMMITTEE

Committee Clerk: Mr Brown Members (10):

Orme, Mr Stanley (Chairman) Cormack, Mr Patrick Hunt, Mr David Powell, Mr Ray

Dixon, Mr Don Peacock, Mrs Elizabeth Shepherd, Mr Colin Howells, Mr Geraint Porter, Mr Barry Warren, Mr Kenneth

### HOUSE OF COMMONS (SERVICES): CATERING SUB-COMMITTEE

Committee Clerk: Mr Brown Members (5):

Irving, Mr Charles (Chairman) Martin, Mr Michael Walley, Joan

Montgomery, Sir Fergus

Shepherd, Mr Colin

### HOUSE OF COMMONS (SERVICES): COMPUTER SUB-COMMITTEE

Committee Clerk: Mr Patrick Members (5):

Dobson, Mr Frank (Chairman) Lloyd, Sir Ian Warren, Mr Kenneth

Rhodes James, Mr Robert

Walley, Joan

### HOUSE OF COMMONS (SERVICES): LIBRARY SUB-COMMITTEE

Committee Clerk: Mr Brown Members (5):

Shepherd, Mr Colin (Chairman) Blackburn, Dr John Rhodes James, Mr Robert

Faulds, Mr Andrew

Martin, Mr Michael

### HOUSE OF COMMONS (SERVICES): NEW BUILDING SUB-COMMITTEE

Committee Clerk: Mr James Members (7):

Powell, Mr Ray (Chairman) Blackburn, Dr John Hunt, Mr David

Cormack, Mr Patrick Orme, Mr Stanley Dobson, Mr Frank Porter, Mr Barry

### Reports

Report no

Subject

Paper no

1

New parliamentary building (Phase 2): the next steps

HC 561

2

Access to the precincts of the House

HC 580

### LIAISON

Nominated 17 December 1987 Committee Clerk: Mr Ryle Members (21):

Higgins, Mr Terence (Chairman) Buck, Sir Antony Field, Mr Frank Johnson Smith, Sir Geoffrey Marshall, Mr David Rossi, Sir Hugh Wallace, Mr James Wheeler, Mr John

Cryer, Mr Bob Fox, Sir Marcus Leighton, Mr Ron Mates, Mr Michael Sheldon, Mr Robert Wardell, Mr Gareth Wiggin, Mr Jerry Emery, Sir Peter Howell, Mr David Lloyd, Sir Ian Raison, Mr Timothy Spearing, Mr Nigel Warren, Mr Kenneth

### MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Nominated 22 July 1987 Committee Clerk: Mr Hastings Members (13)

Johnson Smith, Sir Geoffrey (Chairman)
Adley, Mr Robert A
Campbell, Mr Menzies C
Griffiths, Mr Peter N
Pendry, Mr Tom R

Allen, Mr Graham Campbell-Savours, Mr Dale McNair-Wilson, Sir Michael Ross, Mr Ernie Bowis, Mr John Fenner, Dame Peggy Morgan, Mr Rhodri Shelton, Mr William

### Reports

Report no	Paper no
1	HC 199
2	HC 314
3	HC 350

### PARLIAMENTARY COMMISSIONER FOR ADMINISTRATION

Nominated 22 July 1987 Committee Clerk: Mrs de Ste Croix Members (9)

Buck, Sir Antony (Chairman) Ashby, Mr David Fearn, Mr Ronnie Irvine, Mr Michael

Aspinwall, Mr Jack Haynes, Mr Frank Pawsey, Mr James Campbell, Mr Ronnie Howarth, Mr George

### PROCEDURE

Appointed 27 May 1988 Committee Clerks: Mr Doig and Mr Lambert Members (14):

Emery, Sir Peter (Chairman) Banks, Mr Tony Clark, Sir William Ewing, Mr Harry Onslow, Mr Cranley Wallace, Mr James

Bennett, Mr Nicholas Cook, Mr Frank Maxwell-Hyslop, Mr Robin Powell, Mr William

Campbell-Savours, Mr Dale Crowther, Mr Stan Morrison, Sir Charles Sims, Mr Roger

### Reports

Report no

Subject

Paper no

4

Implications for procedure of the experiment in televising proceedings of the House

HC 705

### PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

Nominated 9 July 1987 Committee Clerk: Mr Patrick Members (15):

Sheldon, Mr Robert (Chairman)

Allen, Mr Graham Campbell-Savours, Mr Dale
Gow, Mr Ian Lamont, Mr Norman
Maclennan, Mr Robert Morris, Mr Michael
Page, Mr Richard McLeish, Mr Henry
Shersby, Mr Michael Smith, Mr Tim

Davis, Mr Terry Latham, Mr Michael Mowlam, Marjorie Shaw, Sir Michael

Report no	Subject	Paper no	Treasury Minute
1	Scottish Special Housing Association	HC 112	Cm 307
2	Export Credits Guarantee Dept 1985-86 trading accounts: fixed rate export finance	HC 113	Cm 307
3	Falling school rolls	HC 119	Cm 307
4	Recovery of social security benefits when damages in tort are awarded	HC 120	Cm 307
5	Measurement of farming incomes	HC 121	Cm 307
6	Trustee Savings Banks: rights of ownership	HC 122	Cm 307
7	BBC external services: financial control & accountability to Parliament	HC 131	Cm 323
8	Individual training in the Armed Forces; the proposed Defence School of Music	HC 153	Cm 323
9	Ministry of Defence: service hospitals	HC 154	Cm 323
10	Internal audit in central Government	HC 155	Cm 323
11	Internal audit in the National Health Service	HC 156	Cm 323
12	Matters relating to the Inland Revenue Department	HC 157	Cm 323
1 Sp	Treasury guidance to government departments on assisting private sector ventures	HC 165	Cm 323
13	National Audit Office Estimates 1988-89 and Corporate Plan 1988-89 to 1991-92	HC 181	
14	Northern Ireland Audit Office Estimates 1988-89	HC 222	
15	Incorrect payments of social security payments	HC 132	Cm 367
16	Monitoring and control of charities in England and Wales	HC 116	Cm 367
17	Postgraduate awards	HC 166	Cm 367
18	Regulation of heavy lorries	HC 170	Cm 367
19	Excess votes, 1986-87	HC 323	Cm 367
20	Ministry of Defence fraudulent expenses claims; meteorological services	HC 333	Cm 367

### Reports (Continued)

Report no	Subject	Paper no	Treasury Minute
21	Employment assistance to disabled adults	HC 144	Cm 410
22	Employment of works consultants; repayment arrangements for works expenditure for US forces	HC 403	Cm 410
23	Manpower aid to developing countries	HC 223	Cm 410
24	Financial support for the fishing industry in Great Britain	HC 266	Cm 410
25	Computer security in Government departments	HC 291	Cm 410
26	Community care developments	HC 300	Cm 410
27	Objectives and management of Ordnance Survey	HC 278	Cm 509
28	Matters relating to Northern Ireland	HC 328	Cm 502
29	EH 101 Anglo-Italian helicopter project	HC 531	Cm 509
30	External trade measures for agricultural produce	HC 342	Cm 509
31	Naval warship and weapons procurement	HC 189	Cm 509
32	Review of the operations of the Land Registry	HC 318	Cm 509
33	HM Customs & Excise: investigation of fraud and smuggling	HC 452	Cm 509
34	Sale of Government share-holdings in British Gas plc, British Airways plc, Rolls-Royce plc and BAA plc	HC 211	Cm 509
35	Ministry of Defence: procurement irregularities	HC 450	Cm 509
36	Prison service industries and farms	HC 334	Cm 509
37	Regional and selective asssistance	HC 406	Cm 533
38	Review of Scottish new towns	HC 435	Cm 533
39	The Government's purchasing initiative	HC 464	Cm 533
40	Estate management in the National Health Service	HC 481	Cm 533
41	Export Credits Guarantee Department: effect of international debt on accounting results and other matters	HC 401	Cm 509
42	Financial control and accountability of the Metropolitan Police; court building programme; prison building programme	HC 196	Cm 533
43	Independent Broadcasting Authority: additional payments by programme contractors	HC 317	
44	Quality of service to the public at DHSS local offices	HC 491	
45	Inland Revenue Department and HM Customs and Excise	HC 546	
46	Management of the family practitioner services	HC 553	

### Reports (Continued)

Reports no	2	Subject	Paper no	Treasury Minute
47		Ministry of Defence: major defence projects	HC 371	
48		Sale of Royal Ordnance plc	HC 206	
49		Costs and financial control of British Forces Germany	HC 324	
50		Use of operating theatres in National Health Service	HC 348	
51		The Alvey Programme for advanced information technology	HC 477	
52		Ministry of Defence: the profit formula	HC 503	

### STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS (JOINT COMMITTEE)

Committee Clerks: Mr Phillips and Mr Makower Members (14) Nominated by the House of Lords 7 July 1987

Brooks of Tremorfa, Lord Shaughnessy, Lord

Blatch, Baroness Cullen of Ashbourne, Lord Dilhorne, Viscount

Boston of Faversham, Lord

### Nominated by the House of Commons 9 July 1987

Cryer, Mr Bob (Chairman) Alexander, Mr Richard Cash, Mr William

Barnes, Mrs Rosie Bennett, Mr Andrew Kirkhope, Mr Timothy Martin, Mr David

[The Committee considers Statutory Instruments laid before both Houses. It issued 37 Reports in session 1987-88, all serial parts of HC 49. Details are available from the Public Information

### STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

Nominated 9 July 1987 Committee Clerk: Mr Phillips Members (7):

Cryer, Mr Bob (Chairman) Alexander, Mr Richard Cash, Mr William

Barnes, Mrs Rosie Kirkhope, Mr Timothy

Bennett, Mr Andrew Martin, Mr David

### Reports

[The Committee considers Statutory Instruments laid before the House of Commons only. It issued 8 Reports in Session 1987-88, as serial parts of HC 50. Details are available from the Public Information Office.]

### TELEVISING OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE HOUSE

Appointed 29 March 1988 Committee Clerks: Mr Doig and Mr Sandall Members (20):

Wakeham, Mr John (Chairman) Bright, Mr Graham Fookes, Miss Janet Goodlad, Mr Alastair Harris, Mr David Illsley, Mr Eric Rees, Mr Merlyn Wilson, Mr Brian

Dixon, Mr Don
Gale, Mr Roger
Grant, Sir Anthony
Hughes, Mr Robert G
Kennedy, Mr Charles
Ruddock, Joan

Dobson, Mr Frank Goodhart, Sir Philip Grocott, Mr Bruce Hunt, Mr David Nelson, Mr Anthony Tracey, Mr Richard

### SUBJECT LISTING OF REPORTS OF DEPARTMENTAL SELECT COMMITTEES

The following basic subject guide to the reports of the Departmental Select Committees (excluding, therefore, the Public Accounts Committee) is in an abbreviated form. Special reports and Government Observations are not included. Full details are given in Section B1.

Agr (2) HC 456 means that the subject is covered by the Second Report, 1987-88 of the Agriculture Select Committee, published as House of Commons Paper 456 of the Session

Africa - famine - For (1) HC 297 Air pollution - Env (1) HC 270 Airline competition - Trans (3) HC 461 Armed forces - business appointments - Def (2) HC 392 Armed forces - ethnic monitoring - Def (1) HC 391 Arms control and disarmament - For (3) HC 280 Autumn statement - Treas (1) HC 197 Belize - Def (8) HC 624 Broadcasting - Home (3) HC 262 Broadcasting - radio - Home (2) HC 386 Budget - Treas (4) HC 400 Business appointments - armed forces - Def (2) HC 392 Chernobyl - Agr (2) HC 456 Civil aircraft - defence requirement - Def (4) HC 476 Civil service management - Treas (8) HC 494
Coal industry - estimates - Ener (2) HC 306
Defence procurement - Def (5) HC 431
Disarmament and arms control - For (3) HC 280 Economic policy - Treas (1) HC 197 Electricity - privatisation - Ener (3) HC 307 Electricity - privatisation - Ener (3) HC 307
Electricity supply - Northern Ireland - Ener (5) HC 679
Estimates - defence - Def (7) HC 495
Estimates - DOE - Env (2) HC 463
Estimates - employment - Emp (1) HC 526
Estimates - PSA - Env (3) HC 516
Ethnic monitoring - armed forces - Def (1) HC 391 Ethnic monitoring - armed forces - Def (1) HC 391
European community finance - Treas (5) HC 358
Expenditure plans - Ed (1) HC 265, Ener (4) HC 513, For (4) HC 429, Home (1) HC 340, Trans (2)
HC 442, Treas (2) HC 292, Treas (7) HC 506, Welsh (1) HC 397
Famine - Africa - For (1) HC 297
Financial reporting to Parliament - Treas (6) HC 614
Horn of Africa - famine - For (1) HC 297
Immigration Dept - Home (1) HC 340
Iran/Iraq conflict - For (2) HC 279
Legionnaire's disease - Emp (2) HC 524 Iran/Iraq conflict - For (2) HC 279
Legionnaire's disease - Emp (2) HC 524
Low income statistics - Soc (4) HC 565
Merchant fleet - Trans (1) HC 303
Merchant shipping - defence requirement - Def (4) HC 476
Motor components industry - Trade (1) HC 316
National health service - Soc (1) HC 264, (2) HC 369, (3) HC 547, (5) HC 613 Parliament - financial reporting to - Treas (6) HC 614 Petrol retailing - Trade (2), (3) HC 384, 696 Petrol retailing - Trade (2), (3) HC 384, 696
Police Complaints Authority - Home (4) HC 583
Pollution - air - Env (1) HC 270
Privatisation - electricity - Ener (3) HC 307
Property Services Agency - estimates - Env (3) HC 516
Radio broadcasting - Home (2) HC 386
Radioactivity - Chernobyl - Agr (2) HC 456
Reservation systems - airlines - Trans (3) HC 461
Reveal New's surface fleet - Def (6) HC 309 Royal Navy's surface fleet - Def (6) HC 309 Social services - public expenditure - Soc (6) HC 687 Storm of October 1987 - Agr (1) HC 272 Taxation - indirect - Treas (3) HC 248 Trident programme - Def (3) HC 422 Urban development corporations - Emp (3) HC 327 VAT - EC proposals - Treas (3) HC 248

### 'MATTERS' DISCUSSED BY STANDING COMMITTEES

Debates on Bills, Statutory Instruments, Church Measures, Northern Ireland and European Community documents are excluded from this section.

# SCOTTISH GRAND COMMITTEE

21.3.88	*Education in Scotland
14.6.88	Health in Scotland
5.7.88	Scottish estimates (Prisons)
12.7.88	Scottish estimates (Housing)
14.7.88	Scottish estimates (Rural affairs)
19.7.88	Scottish estimates (Industry)
21.7.88	Scottish estimates (Industry)
26.7.88	Scottish estimates (Poverty)

### WELSH GRAND COMMITTEE

15.7.87	Queen's Speech and its effect on Wales
2.12.87	Queen's Speech and its effect on Wales and Economic, Industrial and Commercial Development in Wales
10.2.88	National Health Service in Wales
25.5.88	Education and training for employment in Wales
13.7.88	Effect of Government legislation on the people of Wales

<sup>\*</sup> in Edinburgh

# COMPLETE LIST OF PUBLIC BILLS GENERAL NOTES

In the list of bills which follows the type of Bill is shown at the left-hand margin below the title by the following codes:

A Government Bills (also denoted by the word 'Government' after the title)

B Consolidation Bills

W Private Members' Bills (under the ballot procedure)

X Private Members' Bills (under SO No 58)

Y Private Members' Bills (under the Ten Minute Rule, SO No 19)

Z Private Members' Bills starting in the House of Lords

### Abbreviations:

1R First Reading: date of presentation (no debate at this stage except for Class Y

Bills, which have short introductory speeches)

2R Second Reading (the debate on the principle of the Bill)

MR Money Resolution (normally taken after Second Reading: shown below only if taken

at another time)

SRC Second Reading Committee (Second Reading taken in Committee; formal 2R in whole

House next day unless otherwise stated)

SGC) Scottish or Welsh Grand Committee consideration of principle (equates with 2nd

WGC) Reading Committee)

Committee Stage (the detailed examination of the Bill). If no committee is named

(eg SC A) a committee of the whole House is indicated.

PBC Public Bill Committee (Committee Stage in the House of Lords, when the

not undertaken by a committee of the whole House).

SC A, (B, etc) Standing Committee A, B, etc

CN Committee negatived. (Indicates that there was no debate at committee stage in the

House of Lords)

OCD Order of Commitment discharged (no debate at Committee stage in the House of

Lords)

Rep Report Stage (detailed review of the Bill as amended in Committee)

3R Third Reading (final debate on the Bill)

LA Lords' Amendments considered in the House of Commons

CA Commons' Amendments considered in the House of Lords

1st(2nd)Scot SC 1st (2nd) Scottish Standing Committee

GM Allocation of Time Motion (Guillotine motion)

[HL] Indicates a Bill which started in the House of Lords

HYBRID BILL A Public Bill which affects the private interests of particular persons or

corporate bodies as distinct from the private interests of all persons or bodies

PROPOSED BILL Indicates that a motion for leave to bring in a Bill under the Ten Minute Rule (SO

No 19) was negatived

In order to save space, the list is in an abbreviated form. The title of the Bill is followed by the name of the Member and/or Peer sponsoring it. Under this, at the left hand margin, the letter denotes the type of Bill (see General Notes). This is followed by the Bill number (or Bill numbers if it has been reprinted as amended, with the original first and the latest reprinting last). Then follow the dates of the various stages (eg 27.11 - 27 November).

An asterisk (\*) means that proceedings were formal, with no debate.

Dates underlined indicate that stages were taken in 1987. Other dates refer to 1988.

Mr D Alton ABORTION (AMENDMENT)

1R: <u>28.10</u> 2R: 22.1 (Rep: 6.5 (Debate adjourned) Comm (SC C): 23.3-30.3 W) Commons: (22,137)

Mr N Winterton

ABORTION (AMENDMENT) (NO 2) [HL]

Z) Lords: (85) 1R: 3.5 Lord Houghton of Sowerby

ABORTION (FINANCIAL BENEFIT)

W) Commons: (39) 1R: 28.10

ABORTION (TREATMENT OF NON-RESIDENT WOMEN) Mr E Leigh

W) Commons: (35) 1R: 28.10

ACCESS TO MEDICAL REPORTS

CCESS TO MEDICAL REPORTS Mr A Kirkwood/Lord Tordoff
W) Commons: (29,186) 1R: 28.10 2R: 12.2 Remaining stages: 29.4 LA: 8.7
Lords: (83,99) 1R: 4.5 2R: 18.5 Comm: 7.6 Rep:\*13.6 3R: 23.6
Royal Assent (cap 28, 1988): 29.7

Mr T Banks ALCOHOL (HEALTH WARNING)

(not printed) Y) Commons: (175) 1R: 7.6 ARMED FORCES (HOUSING) Mr J Brazier

Y) Commons: (149) 1R: 26.4 (not printed)

ARMS CONTROL AND DISARMAMENT (PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES) Sir G Howe/Lord Glenarthur (Government)

A) Commons: (1) 1R: 26.6 2R: 22.10 Comm (SC D): 3-12.11 Rep & 3R: 10.12 Lords: (31) 1R: 14.12 2R: 14.1 OCD: 28.1 3R: 8.2 Royal Assent (cap 2, 1988): 9.2

BETTING, GAMING AND LOTTERIES (AMENDMENT) [HL] Lord Newall/Mr H Greenway
Z) Lords: (34,58) 1R: 17.12 2R: 21.1 Comm: 7.3 Rep: 16.3 3R: 21.3

Lords: (34,58) 1R: <u>17.12</u> Commons: (151) 1R: 25.4

BLACKLISTS (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) Maria Fyfe

Y) Commons: (129)

1R: 12.4

[BRITISH IDENTITY CARD PROPOSED BILL Motion for leave to bring in, negatived: 21.6]

[BRITISH RAIL (PRIVATISATION) PROPOSED BILL Motion for leave to bring in, negatived: 8.11]

BRITISH SHIPBUILDERS (BORROWING POWERS)

A) Commons: (4) 1R: 26.6 2R: 9.7 Mr K Clarke/Lord Beaverbrook Remaining stages: 16.7

A) Commons: (4) 1R: <u>26.6</u> 2R: <u>9.7</u> Remaining stages: Lords: (8) All stages: <u>21.7</u> Royal Assent (cap 52, 1987): <u>23.7</u>

BRITISH STEEL Mr K Clarke/Lord Beaverbrook (Government) 2R: 23.2 Comm (SC D): 8.3-3.5

A) Commons: (96,154) 1R: 11.2 2R: 23.2 Comm (SC D): 8.3-3.5 Rep & 3R: 17 & 18.5 Lords: (93) 1R: 19.5 2R: 26.5 Comm: 20.6 Rep: 6.7 3R: 13.7 Royal Assent (cap 35, 1988): 29.7

CARAVAN SITES ACT 1968 (AMENDMENT)

X) Commons: (206)

CEMETERIES (CONTROL OF SALE ETC) Mr H Greenway

X) Commons: (158) 1R: 4.5

CERVICAL CANCER (TESTING AND TREATMENT) Mr J Wray

Y) Commons: (107) 1R: 1.3

CHANNEL TUNNEL (HYBRID BILL)

CHANNEL TUNNEL (HYBRID BILL) Mr P Channon/Lord Brabazon of Tara (Government)

A) Commons: (137, 1985–86; 5,8,52, 1986–87; 11, 1987–88) 1R: 17.4.86 2R: 5.6.86

Comm (Select Citee): 24.6–18.11.86 Motion to suspend proceedings: 4.11.86

Comm (SC A): 2.12.86–22.1.87 Rep & 3R: 3.2.87

Motion to suspend proceedings: 13.5.87 LA: 21.7.87

Lords: (63,137, 1986–87; 1,2,5,7, 1987–88) 1R: 4.2.87 2R: 16.2.87

Comm (Select Citee): 24.2–6.5.87

Motion to suspend proceedings: 13.5.87 Comm: 2 & 6.7.87 Rep: 13.7.87

3R: 16.7.87 Royal Assent (cap 53, 1987): 23.7.87

[CHILD BENEFIT (FORFEITURE) PROPOSED BILL Motion for leave to bring in, negatived: 29.6]

CHILD BENEFIT (UPRATING) Sir B Rhys Williams

Y) Commons: (71) 1R: <u>15.12</u>

CITIZENS COMPENSATION RIGHTS
Y) Commons: (181) 1R: 22.6 (not printed)

Lord Cameron of Lochbroom/Sir P Mayhew (Government) CIVIL EVIDENCE (SCOTLAND) [HL]

A) Lords: (14,21,29,113) 1R: 29.10 2R: 12.11 Comm: 26.11 Rep: 10.12 CA: 21.7 3R: <u>17.12</u>

Commons: (76,187) 1R: 17.12 2R: 16.5 Comm (1st Scot SC): 16 - 28.6 Rep & 3R: 4.7 Royal Assent (cap 32, 1988): 29.7

COAL MINING SUBSIDENCE (DAMAGE AND ARBITRATION) Mr A Meale

Y) Commons (56) 1R: 18.11

Y) Commons: (229) 1R: 8.11 COLD CLIMATE ALLOWANCE

COAL MINING SUBSIDENCE (PREVENTION AND PUBLIC AWARENESS)

Mr A Meale

X) Commons: (95)

COMMUNITY HEALTH COUNCILS (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) Mr A Faulds/Lord Stallard

W) Commons: (38,146) 1R: <u>28.10</u> 2R: 22.1 Comm (SC C): 20.4 Rep & 3R: 29.4 Lords: (87) 1R: 4.5 <u>2R</u>: 15.6 Comm: \*23.6 3R: 29.6

Royal Assent (cap 24, 1988): 29.7

COMPANIES

OMPANIES Sir B Rhys Williams X) Commons: (41) 1R: 30.10 (not printed)

Sir B Rhys Williams/Lord Bruce of Donington

COMPANIES (AUDIT COMMITTEES)

Y) Commons: (130) 1R: 22.3 All stages: \*15.4

Lords: (73) 1R: 18.4 2R (Negatived): 18.5

COMPANIES (POLITICAL DONATIONS) Mr D
Y) Commons: (68) 1R: 9.12 (not printed) Mr D Fatchett

COMPENSATION ADVISORY BOARD Mr J Ashley

X) Commons: (200)

CONCESSIONARY TELEVISION LICENCES FOR STATE RETIREMENT PENSIONERS Marjorie Mowlam

Y) Commons: (57) 1R: 24.11 (not printed)

(Government)

CONSOLIDATED FUND Mr N Lamont/Lord Beaverbrook (Government)

A) Commons: (44) 1R: 12.11 All stages: \*16.11
Lords: (not printed) 1R: 16.11 All stages: \*17.11 Royal Assent (cap 54, 1987): 17.11

TITLE OF ACT: CONSOLIDATED FUND (NO 2) ACT 1987

Mr N Lamont/Lord Young of Graffham (Government)

CONSOLIDATED FUND (APPROPRIATION) Mr N L.
A) Commons: (8) 1R: 8.7 All stages: \*13.7
Lords: (not printed) 1R: 14.7 All stages: 23.7
TITLE OF ACT: APPROPRIATION (NO 2) ACT 1987

Royal Assent (cap 50, 1987): 23.7

CONSOLIDATED FUND (APPROPRIATION) (NO 2) Mr N Lamont (Government)

A) Commons: (161) 1R: 21.7 All stages: \*28.7

Lords: (not printed) 1R: 28.7 All stages: \*29.7 Royal Assent (cap 38, 1988): 29.7

TITLE OF ACT: APPROPRIATION ACT 1988

CONSOLIDATED FUND (NO 2)

A) Commons: (60) 1R: 7.12 All stages: \*8.12
Lords: (not printed) 1R: 9.12 All stages: \*10.12
Royal Assent (cap 55, 1987): 10.12

TITLE OF ACT: CONSOLIDATED FUND (NO 3) ACT 1987 (Government)

CONSOLIDATED FUND (NO 3) Mr N Lamont/Lord Beaverbrook (Government)

A) Commons: (104) 1R: 8.3 All stages: \*10.3
Lords: (not printed) All stages: \*14.3 Royal Assent (cap 6, 1988): 15.3

TITLE OF ACT: CONSOLIDATED FUND ACT 1988

CONSUMER ARBITRATION AGREEMENTS Mr J Pawsey/Lord Lucas of Chilworth

W) Commons: (23,97) 1R: 28.10 2R: 29.1 Comm: \*12.2 Rep & 3R: 15.4

Lords: (74) 1R: 18.4 2R: 11.5 OCD: 9.6 3R: \*16.6

Royal Assent (cap 21, 1988): 28.6

CONSUMER PROTECTION (REGISTRATION OF PROFESSIONAL CHEMISTS) Dr M Clark
X) Commons: (218) 1R: 25.10

CONTROL OF INTERCEPTION Mr B Cryer
X) Commons: (214) 1R: 28.7

COPYRIGHT, DESIGNS AND PATENTS [HL]

A) Lords: (12,37,60,125) 1R: 28.10 2R: 12.11 Comm: 30.11; 3.8,10,14,17.12 & 12.1

Rep: 23 & 24.2, 1 & 10.3 3R: 29.3 CA: 2.11

Commons: (139,176,226) 1R: 12.4 2R: 28.4 Comm (SC E): 10.5-21.6 Rep & 3R: 25.7

LA: 8.11 Royal Assent (cap 48, 1988): 15.11

 CORONERS [HL]
 Lord Chancellor/Sir P Mayhew
 (Government)

 B)
 Lords: (9,16)
 1R: 21.7
 2R: \*22.10
 OCD: \*5.11
 3R: \*8.12

 Commons: (69)
 1R: 9.12
 All stages: \*3.5
 Royal Assent (cap 13, 1988): 10.5

COUNTING WOMEN'S UNREMUNERATED WORK Mildred Gordon X) Commons: (225) 1R: 3.11

COURT OF SESSION [HL] Lord Cameron of Lochbroom/Sir P Mayhew (Government)

B) Lords: (59,66,77,119) 1R: 10.3 2R: \*17.3 Comm(Jt Cttee): 23.3 Comm: 19.4

Rep: 26.4 3R: 3.5 CA: 21.7

Commons: (157) 1R: 3.5 2R: \*6.7 Remaining stages: 11.7

Royal Assent (cap 36, 1988): 29.7

CREDIT (CONTROL) Mr E Morley
Y) Commons: (94) 1R: 10.2

 CRIMINAL JUSTICE [HL]
 Earl of Caithness/Mr D Hurd (Government)

 A)
 Lords: (3,15,20,111)
 1R: 29.6 2R: 14.7 Comm: 20, 22, 26, 27, 29.10, 2 & 3.11

 Rep: 17, 19 & 23.11 Rep: 17, 19 & 23.11 Rep: 18.1 Comm (SC H): 11.2-29.3 Rep & 3R: 7, 16, 20 & 28.6 Royal Assent (cap 33, 1988): 29.7

CROWN PREROGATIVES (HOUSE OF COMMONS CONTROL)

X) Commons: (117) 18: 16.3

DARTFORD - THURROCK CROSSING (HYBRID BILL) Mr P Channon/Lord Brabazon of Tara (Government)

A) Commons: (126, 1986-87; 3,74,93,173 1987-88) 1R: 1.4.87

Motition to suspend proceedings: \*13.5.87 2R: 9.7.87

Comm (Select Cttee): 27.10-15.12.87 Comm (SC B): 2.2.88 Rep & 3R: 22.2.88

LA;\*13.6.88

Lords: (55,79,89) 1R: 23.2.88 2R: 17.3.88 Comm (Select Cttee): 12.4-21.4 Comm: 10.5

Lords: (55,79,89) 1R: 23.2.88 2R: 17.3.88 Comm (Select Cttee): 12.4-21.4 Comm: 10.5 Rep: \*23.5.88 3R: \*26.5.88 Royal Assent (cap 20, 1988): 28.6.88

DATA PROTECTION ACT 1984 (AMENDMENT)

Y) Commons: (51) 1R: 10.11

DEMOCRATIC OATHS Mr T Benn X) Commons: (204) 1R: 21.7

DISQUALIFICATION FROM OWNERSHIP OF ANIMALS Mr H Greenway
X) Commons: (43) 1R: 30.10 Bill withdrawn: 15.1

[DOCK LABOUR (AMENDMENT AND LIMITATION) PROPOSED BILL Motion for leave to bring in, negatived: 11.5]

 DUCHY OF LANCASTER
 Mr K Clarke/Lord Beaverbrook
 (Government)

 A) Commons: (5)
 1R: 26.6
 SRC: 17.11
 Comm (SC G): 1.12
 Rep & 3R: 21.1

 Lords: (40)
 1R: 25.1
 2R: 14.3
 OCD:\*28.3
 3R: \*31.3

 Royal Assent (cap 10, 1988): 3.5

EDUCATION (RIGHT TO NURSERY PLACES) Mr K Vaz Y) Commons: (198) 1R: 13.7 (not printed)

EDUCATION REFORM Mr K Baker/Baroness Hooper (Government)

A) Commons: (53,114,195,211) 1R: 20.11 2R: 1.12 Comm (SC J): 8.12-8.3

GM: 1 & 17.2 & 18.7 MR (No 2): 17.2 MR (No 3): 21.3

Rep: 22, 23, 24 & 28.3 3R: 28.3 LA: 18, 19 & 26.7

Lords: (71,94,110,123) 1R: 11.4 2R: 18 & 19.4 Comm: 3, 5, 10, 12, 16, 17 & 19.5

Rep: 21, 22, 23, 27 & 28.6 3R: 7 & 8.7 CA: 25.7

Royal Assent (cap 40, 1988): 29.7

ELECTRICITY (FINANCIAL PROVISIONS) (SCOTLAND) Mr M Rifkind/Lord Sanderson of Bowden (Government)

A) Commons: (169) 1R: 17.5 SGC: 9.6 Comm, Rep & 3R: 4.7

Lords: (112) 1R: 5.7 All stages: 27.7

Royal Assent (cap 37, 1988): 29.7

ELIMINATION OF POVERTY IN OLD AGE ETC

Y) Commons: (61) 1R: 1.12

EMPLOYMENT Mr N Fowler/Lord Trefgarne (Government)

A) Commons: (17,90,152) 1R: 22.10 2R: 3.11 Comm (SC F): 12.11-28.1

Rep & 3R: 8 & 10.2 LA: 24.5

Lords: (50,63,67) 1R: 12.2 2R: 22.2 Comm: 7, 8 & 14.3 Rep: 28.3 3R: 25.4

ROYAL ASSENT (cap 19, 1988): 26.5

EMPTY PROPERTY AND COMMUNITY AID Mr K Hargreaves

Y) Commons: (136) 1R: 30.3

ENGLISH CHURCH Mr T Benn X) Commons: (156) 1R: 18.5

TITLE OF ACT: FINANCE ACT 1988

EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES (AMENDMENT) Mr T Benn X) Commons: (153) 1R: 4.5

EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES (FINANCE) Mr N Lawson/Lord Brabazon of Tara (Government)

A) Commons: (185) 1R: 1.7 2R: 11.7 Comm: 24.10 Rep & 3R: 27.10

Lords: (132) 1R: 31.10 All stages: 10.11

Royal Assent (cap 46, 1988): 15.11

EXTENSION OF CIVIL JUSTICE Mr Q Davies
Y) Commons: (219) 1R: 26.10 (not printed)

FARM LAND AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT [HL] Baroness Trumpington/Mr J MacGregor (Government)

A) Lords: (11,36) 1R: 21.10 2R: 5.11 Comm: 1.12 Rep: 17.12 & 12.1 3R: 18.1

CA: 9.5

Commons: (85) 1R: 18.1 2R: 1.2 Comm (SC B): 15.3-31.3 Rep & 3R: 5.5

Royal Assent (cap 16, 1988): 10.5

FINANCE Mr N Lamont/Lord Young of Graffham (Government)

A) Commons: (7,12) 1R: 1.7 2R: 8.7 Comm: 14, 15 & 16.7 Rep & 3R: 20.7

Lords: (not printed) 1R: 21.7 All stages: 23.7 Royal Assent (cap 51, 1987): 23.7

TITLE OF ACT: FINANCE (NO 2) ACT 1987

FINANCE (No 2) Mr N Lamont/Lord Young of Graffham (Government)
A) Commons: (127,180) 1R: 21.3 2R: 26.4 Comm: 3, 9 & 10.5 Comm (SC A): 12.5-30.6

Rep: 13.7 3R: 14.7

Lords: (120) 1R: 19.7 All stages: 27.7

Royal Assent (cap 39, 1988): 29.7

FOOD AND ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ACT (AMENDMENT)

Mr D Clark
X) Commons: (179) 1R: 20.6

FOREIGN MARRIAGE (AMENDMENT) [HL] Lord Chancellor/Sir P Mayhew (Government)

A) Lords: (56) 1R: 29.2 2R: 14.3 OCD: \*31.3 3R: 14.4

Commons: (144) 1R: 19.4 SRC: 10.5 Comm (SC D): 21.7 Rep & 3R: 31.10

Royal Assent (cap 44, 1988): 2.11

FOREIGN NUCLEAR, CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL BASES (PROHIBITION) Mr T Benn X) Commons: (138) 1R: 13.4

FORESTRY COMMISSION ADVISORY COMMITTEES (PUBLIC ACCESS TO INFORMATION)

Mr R Davies
X) Commons: (112) 1R: 2.3

FUEL AND ENERGY PROVISION Mr J Hughes
Y) Commons: (210) 1R: 27.7

GAMING MACHINES (PROHIBITION OF USE BY PERSONS UNDER SIXTEEN)

Mr J Dunnachie
Y) Commons: (116) 1R: 9.3

GAZUMPING (ABOLITION) Mr D Martin
Y) Commons: (189) 1R: 5.7 (not printed)

GRANDPARENTS' ADOPTION OF CHILDREN Mr R Powell 1R: 17.2 Y) Commons: (98)

HAEMOGLOBIN DISORDERS (SCREENING AND COUNSELLING) Mr T Lloyd X) Commons: (217) 1R: 20.10

(Government) HEALTH AND MEDICINES Mr J Moore/Lord Skelmersdale A) Commons: (59,110,220) 1R: <u>25.11</u> 2R: <u>7.12</u> Comm (SC A): <u>15.12</u>-1.3 LA: 1.11 Rep & 3R: 13 & 14.4 : 18.4 2R: 26.5 Comm: 14 & 19.7 Rep: 17.10 3R: 25.10 CA: 8.11 Royal Assent (cap 49, 1988): 15.11 Lords: (75,121,127,134) 1R: 18.4

HEALTH AND SAFETY AT WORK (TOBACCO SMOKING) Mr G Foulkes 1R: 24.3 X) Commons: (134)

HEALTH AUTHORITIES (DIRECT ELECTIONS) Mr T Lloyd X) Commons: (205) 1R: 20.7

HEARING AID COUNCIL ACT 1968 (AMENDMENT)
X) Commons: (213) 1R: 28.7 Mr J Ashley X) Commons: (213)

HORSES, PONIES AND DONKEYS Mr D Amess 1R: 29.3 Withdrawn: 10.5 Y) Commons: (135)

[HORSES, PONIES AND DONKEYS (NO 2)
Title changed to PROTECTION AGAINST CRUEL TETHERING: 5.7]

HOSPITAL CONSULTANTS (TRANSFER AND REVISION OF CONTRACTS)

Mr J Arnold 1R: 23.3 (not printed)

Mr N Ridley/Earl of Caithness HOUSING (Government) A) Commons: (54,120,227) 1R: 19.11 2R: 30.11 Comm (SC G): 10.12-15.3

Rep: 9, 13 14 & 27.6 3R: 27.6 LA: 9 & 11.11 GM: 11.11

Lords: (109,126,130,136) 1R: 28.6 2R: 11.7 Comm: 21, 25, 26 & 28.7, 10 & 11.10

Rep: 24, 25, 26 & 27.10 3R: 3.11 CA: 14.11

Royal Assent (cap 50, 1988): 15.11

HOUSING (HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION) Mr B Wilson W) Commons: (33)

Mr M Rifkind/Lord Sanderson of Bowden (Government) HOUSING (SCOTLAND) A) Commons: (63,105,212)

1R: 3.12
Rep & 3R: 29 & 30.3
Lords: (69,84,117,131)

1R: 31.3
2R: 11.4
Comm (1st Scot SC): 19.1–2.3
Rep & 3R: 29 & 30.3
Lords: (69,84,117,131)
1R: 31.3
2R: 11.4
Comm: 25, 26 & 28.4
Rep: 6 & 20.7
3R: 27.7
CA: 31.10
Royal Assent (cap 43, 1988): 2.11

HOUSING (WAITING LIST RESTRICTIONS) Mr D Anderson W) Commons: (37)

Mr D Hurd/Earl Ferrers MMIGRATION Mr D Hurd/Earl Ferrers (Government)
A) Commons: (49,88,148) 1R: 5.11 2R: 16.11 Comm (SC D): 24.11-26.1 Rep & 3R: 16.2
LA: 4.5
Lords: (53,72) 1R: 17.2 2R: 4.3 Comm: 21 & 22.3 Rep: 12.4 3R: 21.4 IMMIGRATION Royal Assent (cap 14, 1988): 10.5

| Composition |

INDECENT DISPLAYS (NEWSPAPERS) Y) Commons: (140) 1R: 13.4

INFANT LIFE (PRESERVATION) [HL] Lord Houghton of Sowerby

Z) Lords: (6) 1R: 9.7 2R: 22.7 Comm (Select Cttee): 24.11-15.2 (Debate on report of Committee HLP 50): 25.3

 LAND
 REGISTRATION [HL]
 Lord Templeman/Sir G Young

 Z)
 Lords: (17,33)
 1R: 5,11
 2R: 25,11
 Comm: 16,12
 Rep: 11.2
 3R: 23.2

 Commons: (103)
 1R: 24.2
 Remaining stages: \*26.2

 Royal Assent (cap 3, 1988): 15.3

 LANDLORD AND TENANT [HL]
 Lord Coleraine/Mr M Carrington

 Z) Lords: (23)
 1R: 30.11
 2R: 16.12
 OCD: \*11.4
 3R: \*5.5

 Commons: (162)
 1R: 5.5
 2R, Comm & Rep: \*13.5
 3R: \*8.7

 Royal Assent (cap 26, 1988): 29.7

EGAL AID [HL] Lord Chancellor/Sir P Mayhew (Government)

A) Lords: (26,39,48,114) 1R: 3.12 2R: 15.12 Comm: 14, 18, 19 & 21.1 Rep: 4 & 8.2

3R: 29.2 CA: 19.7

Commons: (113,182) 1R: 2.3 2R: 4.5 Comm (SC D): 7-21.6 Rep & 3R: 4.7

Royal Assent (cap 34, 1988): 29.7

LEGAL PROFESSION (ABOLITION OF RESTRICTIVE PRACTICES)

Mr Austin Mitchell

Y) Commons: (155) 1R: 3.5

LICENSING

 

 LICENSING (RETAIL SALES)
 Mr Andrew MacKay/Lord Graham of Edmonton

 W) Commons: (32,123)
 1R: 28.10
 2R: \*11.12
 Comm (SC C): 2-16.3
 Rep & 3R: 29.4

 Lords: (88)
 1R: 4.5
 2R: 16.6
 OCD: \*27.6
 3R: 1.7

 Royal Assent (cap 25, 1988): 29.7

LOCAL AUTHORITIES (GENERAL POWERS) Mr T Benn X) Commons: (124)

LOCAL AUTHORITY SEARCHES AND ENQUIRIES ETC Mr M Moss

 
 OCAL GOVERNMENT
 Mr N Ridley/Earl of Caithness
 (Government)

 A) Commons: (2,65,111)
 1R: 26.6 2R: 6.7 Comm (SC A): 16.7-8.12
 Rep: 14 & 15.12

 3R: 15.12 LA: 9.3
 Lords: (35,44,54)
 1R: 17.12 2R: 11.1 Comm: 26 & 28.1, 1 & 2.2 Rep: 15,16 & 18.2

 3R: 29.2 CA: 22.3
 2R: 21.3
 LOCAL GOVERNMENT Royal Assent (cap 9, 1988): 24.3

LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE Mr N Ridley/Earl of Caithness (Government) A) Commons: (66,128,201) IR: 3.12 2R: 16 & 17.12 Comm (SC E): 21.1-24.3 GM: 22.2 & 20.7 Rep: 18,19,20, 21 & 25.4 3R: 25.4 LA: 20.7 Lords: (82,105,116,124) 1R: 26.4 2R: 9.5 Comm: 23 & 24.5, 6, 7, 9, 13, 14 & 16.6 Rep: 29 & 30.6, 4 & 5.7 3R: 13.7 CA: 26.7 Royal Assent (cap 41, 1988): 29.7

MALICIOUS COMMUNICATIONS Mr Andrew Stewart/Lord Campbell of Alloway W) Commons: (25,183) 1R: <u>28.10</u> 2R: 12.2 Remaining stages: 22.4 LA: 8.7 Lords: (81,100) 1R: <u>25.4</u> 2R: 19.5 Comm: 7.6 Rep:\*14.6 3R: 20.6 Royal Assent (cap 27, 1988): 29.7

MATRIMONIAL PROCEEDINGS (TRANSFERS) [HL] Lord Chancellor/Sir P Mayhew (Government)

A) Lords: (49) 1R: 11.2 2R: 25.2 OCD: \*14.3 3R: \*17.3

Commons: (126) 1R: 17.3 SRC: 20.4 2R: \*25.4 Comm (SC B): 3.5

Ban & 3R: \*17.5 Royal Assent (cen 18, 1989): 10.5 Rep & 3R: \*17.5 Royal Assent (cap 18, 1988): 19.5

Mr N Spearing MEDICAL ACT 1983 (AMENDMENT) Y) Commons: (231) 1R: 8.11

Mrs V Bottomley MEDICAL EXAMINATION OF CHILDREN AT RISK Y) Commons: (80) 1R: 13.1 2R: 29.4 (Debate adjourned)

MERCHANT SHIPPING [HL] Lord Brabazon of Tara/Mr P Channon (Government) A) Lords: (13,22,32,70) 1R: 29.10 2R: 10.11 Comm: 24 & 26.11 Rep: 14.12 3R: 11.1 CA: 28.4 Commons: (82,109) 1R: 18.1 2R: 28.1 Comm (SC B): 11.2-3.3 Rep & 3R: 30.3 Rep & 3R: 30.3 Royal Assent (cap 12, 1988): 3.5

MISUSE OF DRUGS Mr M Campbell X) Commons: (46) 1R: 5.11

 
 MOTOR VEHICLES (WEARING OF REAR SEAT BELTS BY CHILDREN)
 Mr S Day/Lord Nugent of Guildford

 W) Commons: (24,150)
 1R: 28.10
 2R: 5.2
 Comm (SC C): 27.4
 Rep & 3R: 13.5

 Lords: (91)
 1R: 17.5
 2R: 6.6
 Comm: 13 & 20.6
 3R: 27.6
 Royal Assent (cap 23, 1988): 28.6

 
 MULTILATERAL INVESTMENT GUARANTEE AGENCY
 Sir G Howe/Baroness Hooper

 A) Commons: (15)
 1R: 23.7
 2R: 24.11
 Comm (SC H): 19.1
 Rep & 3R: 1.2

 Lords: (43)
 1R: 2.2
 2R: 23.2
 OCD: 8.3
 3R: \*17.3
 Royal Assent (cap 8,1988): 24.3

MYALGIC ENCEPHALOMYELITIS Mr J Hood
Y) Commons: (99) 1R: 23.2

NATIONAL CERVICAL CANCER FOUNDATION Mr F Cook X) Commons: (222) 1R: 2.11

NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE (IMPROVED PROVISION OF SERVICES) Mrs A Mahon

Y) Commons: (72) 1R: 16.12

[NATIONAL HEALTH: SERVICE (NATIONAL LOTTERY) PROPOSED BILL Motion for leave to bring in, negatived: 16.2]

NORFOLK AND SUFFOLK BROADS (HYBRID BILL) Mr N Ridley/Earl of Caithness (Government)

A) Commons: (6,129, 1986-87; 6,13,101,106) 1R: 18.11.86 2R: 1.12.86

Comm (Select Cttee): 24.2-31.3.87 Motion to suspend proceedings: \*13.5.87

Comm (SC B): 14-21.7.87 Rep & 3R: 4.11.87 LA: 29.2.88

Lords: (18,27,42) 1R: 5.11.87 2R: 16.11.87 Comm (Select Cttee): 2-9.12.87

Comm: 1.2.88 Rep: \*15.2.88 3R: \*22.2.88

Royal Assent (cap 4, 1988): 15.3.88

NORTH WEST REGIONAL ASSEMBLY Mr | McCartney

Y) Commons: (215) 1R: 19.10

NORTHERN IRELAND (TERMINATION OF JURISDICTION) Mr T Benn

X) Commons: (133) 1R: 28.3

Mr G Radice NORTHERN REGIONAL ASSEMBLY

X) Commons: (58) 1R: 26.11

Mr J Lamond OPTICAL APPLIANCES (BLIND AND PARTIALLY SIGHTED PERSONS)

1R: <u>28.10</u> 2R: 12.2 (Debate adjourned) W) Commons: (30)

OVERSEAS AID (ASSISTANCE TO THE POOREST)

Mr B Wilson

X) Commons: (84) 1R: 21.1

X) Commons: (164) 1R: 12.5

PALACE OF WESTMINSTER (REMOVAL OF CROWN IMMUNITY)

Joan Walley

PARENTAL LEAVE Mr H Cohen

ARENTAL LEAVE Mr H Coh X) Commons: (230) 1R: 9.11 (not printed)

[PERSONAL INCOME (ENDING OF HIGHER RATE TAXATION) PROPOSED BILL Motion for leave to bring in, negatived: 2.2]

PETITIONERS RIGHTS

Mr H Barnes

Y) Commons: (209) 1R: 26.7 (not printed)

PLANNING PERMISSION (DEMOLITION OF HOUSES) Mr H Dykes

Bill withdrawn: 22.6 X) Commons: (42) 1R: 30.10

POLICE ACT 1964 (AMENDMENT) Mr D Campbell-Savours

Y) Commons: (184) 1R: 28.6 (not printed)

POLYURETHANE FOAM (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) Mr I McCartney

Y) Commons: (108) 1R: 2.3

[POST OFFICE EXCLUSIVE PRIVILEGE (EXTINCTION) PROPOSED BILL Motion for leave to bring in, negatived: 12.1]

PRIVATE SECURITY

RIVATE SECURITY Mr B George
Y) Commons: (177) 1R 14.6 (not printed)

PROTECTION AGAINST CRUEL TETHERING Mr D Amess/Lord Houghton of Sowerby

| Title changed from HORSES, PONIES AND DONKEYS (NO 2): 5.7]
| X) | Commons: (166,194) | 1R: 11.5 | All stages: \*13.5 | LA: 8.7 |
| Lords: (90,115) | 1R: 16.5 | 2R: 8.6 | Comm: 22.6 | Rep: 5.7 | 3R: 7.7 |
| Royal Assent (cap 31, 1988): 29.7 |

PROTECTION OF ANIMALS (AMENDMENT) Mr J Browne/Lord Houghton of Sowerby

W) Commons: (31,102,188) 1R: 28.10 2R: \*11.12 Comm (SC C): 10-24.2

Rep & 3R: 22.4 LA: 8.7

Lords: (80,101) 1R: 25.4 2R: 23.5 Comm: 8.6 Rep: \*22.6 3R: \*27

Royal Assent (cap 29, 1988): 29.7

3R: \*27.6

Mr R Shepherd PROTECTION OF OFFICIAL INFORMATION

W) Commons: (20) 1R: <u>28.10</u> 2R (Negatived): 15.1

PROTECTION OF OFFICIAL INFORMATION (No 2) [HL] Lord Bethel

1R: 16.2 2R: 20.4 Z) Lords: (52)

PUBLIC UTILITY TRANSFERS AND WATER CHARGES Mr N Ridley/Lord Belstead (Government)

A) Commons: (10,87,147) 1R: 16.7 2R: 21.10 Comm (SC B): 5.11-21.1 Rep & 3R: 2.2

2R: 26.2 Comm: 17.3 Rep: 14.4 3R: 21.4 1R: 3.2 Lords: (45,65)

Royal Assent (cap 15, 1988): 10.5

[RAILWAY TERMINI (PRIVATISATION) PROPOSED BILL motion for leave to bring in negatived: 20.7]

RATE SUPPORT GRANTS Mr N Ridley/Lord Hesketh (Government)

A) Commons: (216) 1R: 20.10 2R: 31.10 Comm & Remaining stages: 7.11

Lords: (135) 1R: 8.11 All stages: 10.11 Royal Assent (cap 51, 1988): 15.11

RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF FREE TRADE UNIONISM Mr T Benn X) Commons: (199) 1R: 18.7

REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT GRANTS (TERMINATION) Mr K Clarke/Lord Young of Graffham (Government)

A) Commons: (78) 1R: 12.1 2R: 25.1 Comm (SC D): 16.2-1.3 Rep & 3R: 10.3

Lords: (62) 1R: 14.3 2R: 24.3 Comm: 11.4 3R: 21.4

Royal Assent (cap 11, 1988): 3.5

[REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITIES (ABOLITION) PROPOSED BILL Motion for leave to bring in, negatived: 26.1]

REGISTRATION OF COMMERCIAL LOBBYING INTERESTS Mr B Cryer X) Commons: (79) 1R: 13.1

RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (ESTABLISHMENT) Mr F Cook
Y) Commons: (174) 1R: 7.6

RIGHT OF PRIVACY Mr W Cash X) Commons: (45) 1R: 3.11

RIGHT TO LIVE Mr Denis Howell Y) Commons: (159) 1R: 4.5

ROAD TRAFFIC [HL] Lord Chancellor/Sir N Lyell (Government)

B) Lords: (96, 102) 1R: 6.6 2R:\*13.6 Jt Cttee: 15.6 OCD: \*13.7 3R: 25.7 Commons: (203) 1R: 26.7 2R: \*25.10 Comm & Remaining stages: 14.11 Royal Assent (cap 52, 1988): 15.11

ROAD TRAFFIC (BLOOD ALCOHOL CONCENTRATION LIMIT)

Mr R Boyes
Y) Commons: (121) 1R: 16.3 (not printed)

ROAD TRAFFIC (CONSEQUENTIAL PROVISIONS) [HL] Lord Chancellor/Sir N Lyell (Government)

B) Lords: (98, 104) 1R: 6.6 2R:\*13.6 Jt Cttee: 15.6 OCD: \*13.7 3R: 25.7

Commons: (208) 1R: 26.7 2R: \*25.10 Comm & remaining stages: 14.11

Royal Assent (cap 54, 1988): 15.11

ROAD TRAFFIC (RANDOM BREATH TESTING) Mr R Boyes
Y) Commons: (55) 1R: 17.11

ROAD TRAFFIC OFFENDERS Lord Chancellor/Sir N Lyell (Government)

B) Lords: (97, 103) 1R: 6.6 2R:\*13.6 Jt Cttee: 15.6 OCD: \*13.7 3R: 25.7 Commons: (207) 1R: 26.7 2R: \*25.10 Comm & remaining stages: 14.11 Royal Assent (cap 53, 1988): 15.11

SALE OF WAR TOYS (PROHIBITION)

Y) Commons: (67) 1R: 8.12 2R: 22.4 (Debate adjourned)

SCHOOL BOARDS (SCOTLAND)

A) Commons: (122,172,232)

Beg & 3R: 21.6 GM: 11.11 LA: 11.11

Lords: (108,129,133)

1R: 23.6 2R: 15.7 Comm: 18 & 20.10 Rep: 1.11

3R: \*7.11 Royal Assent (cap 47, 1988): 15.11

SCHOOL BUS PASSES (REVISION OF REGULATIONS)

Ann Widdecombe

SCOTCH WHISKY Mr B Walker/Baroness Carnegy of Lour
W) Commons: (21,86) 1R: 28.10 2R: 11.12 Comm (SC C): 20.1-3.2 Rep & 3R: 15.4
Lords: (76) 1R: 18.4 2R: 24.5 OCD: \*14.6 3R: \*21.6
Royal Assent (cap 22, 1988): 28.6

SCOTLAND Mr D Dewar X) Commons: (50) 1R: 12.11

SCOTTISH CONSTITUTION (REFERENDUM) Mrs M Ewing
Y) Commons: (115) 1R: 8.3

[SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT PROPOSED BILL Motion for leave to bring in negatived: 25.11.87]

SECURITY SERVICES (PARLIAMENTARY SCRUTINY)

Mr D Winnick

Y) Commons: (100)

1R: 24.2

SLAUGHTER OF DEER Emma Nicholson

1R: <u>28.10</u> 2R: <u>11.12</u> (Debate adjourned) W) Commons: (27)

SMALL FIRMS (LIBERATION)

Teresa Gorman Y) Commons: (143) 1R: 20.4 (not printed)

SMOKE DETECTORS IN HOUSES

Mr A Burt

Y) Commons: (89)

1R: 9.2 (not printed)

SMOKE NUISANCE (DOMESTIC SOURCES) Mrs G Shephard

Y) Commons: (197) 1R: 12.7 (not printed)

SOCIAL SECURITY

 OCIAL SECURITY
 Mr J Moore/Lord Skelmersdale
 (Government)

 A) Commons: (19,73,119)
 1R: 22.10
 2R: 2.11
 Comm (SC E): 12.11–17.12

 Rep & 3R: 12 & 13.1
 GM: 14.3
 LA: 14.3

 Lords: (38,51,57)
 1R: 15.1
 2R: 25.1
 Comm: 9 & 11.2
 Rep: 3.3
 3R: 10.3

 Royal Assent (cap 7, 1988): 15.3

SOLICITORS (SCOTLAND) Mr A Darling/Lord Morton of Shuna

X) Commons: (165) 1R: 11.5 2R, Comm & Rep: \*13.5 3R: \*8.7

Lords: (118) 1R: 11.7 2R: 20.7 OCD: \*26.7 3R: \*28.7

Royal Assent (cap 42, 1988): 29.7

STANDARD FORM OF LEASE (LEASEHOLD RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY)

Mr H Summerson

Y) Commons: (202) 1R: 19.7 (not printed)

Y) Commons: (168) 1R: 18.5 STATUTORY MINIMUM WAGE

SUNDAY SPORTS [HL]

Z) Lords: (4,19,28)

1R: <u>29.6</u> 2R: <u>15.7</u> Comm: <u>5.11</u> Rep: <u>9.12</u> 3R: <u>16.12</u>

Commons: (77)

SUNDAY SPORTS (NO 2) Mr N Soames

W) Commons: (26) 1R: <u>28.10</u> 2R: 29.1 (Debate adjourned)

TAKEOVERS AND MERGERS (EMPLOYMENT PROTECTION) Mr D Hoyle

Mr T Lewis

Y) Commons: (163)

Y) Commons: (91)

1R: 10.5 (not printed)

TAXI-CABS (CONTROL OF SMOKING) Mr F Cook Y) Commons: (190) 1R: 6.7

TELECOMMUNICATIONS (PREMIUM SERVICES) (REGULATION)

Y) Commons: (64) 1R: <u>2.12</u> (not printed)

Mr T Lewis TELEPHONE TALKABOUT (ABOLITION) (not printed) 1R: 27.1

TENANCIES OF BREWERY COMPANIES (REGULATION)

X) Commons: (178) 1R: 29.6 Mr G Allen

TRADE DESCRIPTIONS ACT 1968 (AMENDMENT) Mr J Browne

Y) Commons: (221) 1R: 1.11

TRANSPLANT NOTIFICATION

Mr G Jones

Y) Commons: (92) 1R: 3.2 (not printed) UNBORN CHILDREN (PROTECTION)

Mr K Hind

W) Commons: (36) 1R: 28.10

UNDERGROUND FIRES (RESEARCH AND CONTROL) AND LAND PROTECTION

Mr H Barnes

1R: 19.1 Y) Commons: (83)

UNFAIR REPORTING AND RIGHT OF REPLY

Mrs A Clwyd

W) Commons: (34) 1R: 28.10

Mr K Mans

UNLEADED PETROL (ENGINE ADJUSTMENT)

Y) Commons: (223) 1R: 2.11 (not printed)

(Government)

 URBAN
 DEVELOPMENT
 CORPORATIONS
 (FINANCIAL LIMITS)
 Mr N Ridley/Lord
 Belstead

 A)
 Commons: (18)
 1R: 22.10
 2R: 4.11
 Comm (SC G): 17.11
 Rep & 3R: 25.11

 Lords: (25)
 1R: 30.11
 All stages: \*17.12
 Royal Assent (cap 57, 1987): 17.12

VACCINE DAMAGE (COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENTS)
Y) Commons: (170) 1R: 24.5 (not printed)

WELSH DEVELOPMENT AGENCY Mr P Walker/Lord Trefgarne (Government)
A) Commons: (52) 1R: 12.11 2R: 28.1 Remaining stages: 3.2
Lords: (47) 1R: 4.2 Remaining Stages: 3.3
Royal Assent (cap 5, 1988): 15.3

Mr B Grocott

Y) Commons: (167) 1R: 17.5

YOUNG EMPLOYEES (TRAINING REQUIREMENT) Mr B Sheerman X) Commons: (196) 1R: 12.7 (not printed)

SECTION C2

# PRIVATE LEGISLATION: COMMONS PROCEEDINGS

Name of Bill	Bill read	2R	Bill committed		Bill reported	Bill as amended considered	ЗR	Royal Assent	Cap No.
Associated British Ports <sup>5+</sup>	22 Jan	28 Jan	28 Jan	U	4 Mar		<u>30 Ap</u> r	10 Dec	xxvii 87
Associated British Ports (No 2) <sup>5</sup> **	22 Jan	11 May# 23 June#		0					
Associated British Ports (Barrow) [HL] <sup>5</sup>	21 Apr	5 May	5 May	U	18 May	7 June	23 June	28 June	xviii 88
Avon Light Rail Transit [HL] <sup>5</sup>	7 June								
Bexley London Borough Council <sup>3+</sup>	22 Jan	12 Feb	12 Feb	U	6 May		2 Jul	16 Nov	xxiii 87
Birmingham City Council <sup>3</sup>	22 Jan	28 Jan	28 Jan	U	2 Mar		10 Mar		
Brighton and Preston Cemetery <sup>3</sup>	12 Feb	18 Feb	3 Mar	U	20 Apr	3 Мау	10 May	28 June	xvii 88
British Railways <sup>5+</sup>	22 Jan	16 Feb#	26 Feb	U	13 May		7 Jul	17 Dec	xxix 87
British Railways (No 2) <sup>5</sup>	22 Jan	15 Mar# 27 Apr#	27 Apr	U	22 June	28 Jul	20 Oct		
British Railways (London) [HL] <sup>5+</sup>	16 Jul	20 Jan#	20 Jan	U	3 Mar		15 Mar#	24 Mar	xi 88
British Waterways <sup>5+</sup>	22 Jan	29 Jan	29 Jan	U	6 May		16 Jul	<u>17 Dec</u>	xxviii 87
British Waterways (No 2) [HL] <sup>5</sup>	16 May	7 June	7 June	U	6 Jul		27 Jul	29 Jul	XXV 88
Cardiff Bay Barrage <sup>3</sup>	22 Jan								
City of London (Spitalfields Market) <sup>5</sup>	22 Jan	12 May#	12 May	0	24 Oct				
City of Westminster <sup>3+</sup>	22 Jan	7 May#	7 May	U	25 Nov	<u>17 Dec</u>	14 Jan	15 Mar	viii 88
Corn Exchange [HL] <sup>4+</sup>	14 Dec	12 Jan	12 Jan	U	2 Mar		8 Mar	15 Mar	x 88
County of South Glamorgan (Taff Crossing) <sup>3++</sup>	22 Jan 1986 Recomm	1 May# 1986 hitted	1 May 1986 12 Mar	0	22 Jul 1986 8 Apr	23 Oct 1986 5 May	9 Jul	29 Jul	xxvi 88
Dartmouth- Kingswear Floating Bridge <sup>4</sup>	22 Jan	28 Jan	15 Feb	U	2 Mar		10 Mar	28 June	xvi 88
Dyfed [HL] <sup>5+</sup>	10 Dec 1986	13 Jan	13 Jan	U	22 Jul	10 Nov	<u>17 Nov</u>	<u>17 Nov</u>	xxiv 87
Eastbourne Harbour [HL] <sup>4</sup>	17 May	7 June	7 June	U	22 June		30 June	29 Jul	xxi 88
Essex [HL] <sup>5++</sup>	30 Jun 1986	10 Jul 1986	10 Jul 1986	0	26 Mar	14 Jul	<u>21 Jul</u>	<u>23 Jul</u>	XX 87
Falmouth Container Terminal <sup>4</sup>	22 Jan								

					Bill as				
Name of Bill	Bill read 1st time	2R	Bill committed	*	Bill reported	amended considered	3R	Royal Assent	Cap No.
Felixstowe Dock and Railway <sup>2+++</sup>	22 Jan 1985	13 May# 1985	6 Jun 1985	0	20 May 1986	14 Jul# 1986 15 Jul# 1986 23 Jul# 10 Nov#	10 Nov#	19 May	xiv 88
Greater Manchester (Light Rapid Transit System) [HL] <sup>4++</sup>	19 Jun 1986	1 Jul 1986	1 Jul 1986	U	22 Jul	21 Jan	27 Jan	9 Feb	i 88
Greater Manchester (Light Rapid Transit System) (No 2) [HL] <sup>4++</sup>	19 Jun 1986	1 Jul 1986	1 Jul 1986	U	22 Jul	2l Jan	27 Jan	9 Feb	ii 88
Hampshire (Lyndhurst Bypass) [HL]	9 Jul 4+	25 Feb#	25 Feb	0	26 Jul				
Harwich Harbour [HL] <sup>5</sup> **	6 Jul	27 Jul	27 Jul	U	2 Nov				
Harwich Parkeston Quay <sup>5++</sup>	22 Jan 1986	28 Apr# 1986 3 Jun# 1986	9 Jun 1986	0	<u>12 May</u>	9 Jul	13 Jul	27 Oct	xxviii 88
Hastings Borough Council <sup>5+</sup>	22 Jan	28 Jan	28 Jan	U	8 Apr	29 Apr	5 May	15 Mar	vii 88
Imperial College [HL] <sup>2</sup>	13 June	20 June	20 June	U	6 Jul	12 Jul	19 Jul	29 Jul	xxiv 88
International Management Centre from Buckingham <sup>1</sup>	22 Jan	(Bill withdr	awn: 8.2)						
Keble College Oxford [HL] <sup>3+</sup>	11 May	10 Dec	10 Dec	U	27 Jan	22 Feb	25 Feb	15 Mar	iv 88
Liverpool Exchange [HL] <sup>2</sup>	26 Jan	9 Feb	9 Feb	U	2 Mar		8 Mar	15 Mar	ix 88
London Docklands Railway (Beckton) <sup>5+</sup>	<u>22 Jan</u>	10 Dec#	10 Dec	0	5 Jul	27 Jul	19 Oct		
London Local Authorities [HL]3	18 Jul	20 Oct	20 Oct						
London Regional Transport <sup>5+</sup> **	<u>22 Jan</u>	28 Jan	13 Feb	0	<u>26 Mar</u>	10 Dec # (Debate adjo	12 Jul ourned)		
London Regional Transport (No 2) <sup>5</sup>	22 Jan	28 Jan	11 Feb	U					
London Regional Transport (Penalty Fares) [HL] <sup>5</sup> **	31 Oct								
Masonic Trust for Girls and Boys <sup>3+</sup>	5 Feb	10 Feb	2 Mar	U	1 Apr	23 Apr	30 Apr	23 Jul	xix 87
National Provident Institution [HL] <sup>2+</sup>	6 May	7 Jul	7 Jul	U	<u>22 Jul</u>	<u>27 Oct</u>	3 Nov	16 Nov	xxii 87
Newcastle upon Tyne Town Moor [HL] <sup>4</sup> **	28 Mar	25 Jul	25 Jul	U	2 Nov				
North Killingholme Cargo Terminal <sup>2</sup> **	22 Jan	22 June# 4 July#	11 July	0					
Northampton [HL] <sup>3</sup>	27 June	11 Jul	11 Jul	U	27 Jul	27 Oct	10 Nov#	15 Nov	xxix 88

Name of Bill	Bill read 1st time	2R	Bill committed		Bill reported	Bill as amended considered	ЗR	Royal Assent	Cap No.
Port of Tyne [HL] <sup>2</sup> **	27 May								
River Humber (Burcom Outfall) [HL] <sup>5</sup> **	25 Jul								
Saint Bennet Fink Burial Ground (City of London)[HL] <sup>4</sup>	21 Mar	30 Mar	30 Mar	U	20 Apr		26 Apr	3 May	xiii 88
St George's Hill,	22 Jan	19 May	23 May	0	30 June		19 Jul		
Weybridge Estate <sup>2</sup>	ZZ Jan	19 May	23 May	0	30 June		19 Jul		
Selwyn College Cambridge [HL] <sup>3+</sup>	11 May	10 Dec	10 Dec	U	27 Jan	22 Feb	25 Feb	15 Mar	v 88
South Yorkshire Light Rail Transit <sup>5++</sup>	22 Jan 1986	3 Jul 1986	3 Jul 1986	0	20 Apr	5 May	10 May	27 Oct	xxvii 88
Southern Water Authority <sup>4</sup>	22 Jan	21 Apr	21 Apr MR: 17.5	U	25 May	13 June	23 June		
Teignmouth Quay Company <sup>2+</sup>	22 Jan								
Tor Bay Harbour (Oxen Cove and Coastal Footpath, Brixham) <sup>7</sup>	22 Jan	28 Jan	28 Jan	U	18 May	24 May	7 June	29 Jul	xxii 88
University College London [HL] <sup>2+</sup>	2 Jul	10 Dec	10 Dec	U	27 Jan	3 Feb	8 Feb	9 Feb	iii 88
University of Wales College of Cardiff [HL] <sup>2</sup>	13 June	21 June	21 June	U	6 Jul		12 Jul	29 Jul	xxiii 88
Whitchurch Bridge <sup>4+</sup>	22 Jan	28 Jan	12 Mar	U	1 Apr	23 Apr	21 Jul	15 Mar	vi
York City Council [HL] <sup>3++</sup>	21 Oct 1986								88

\*U - Unopposed Committee; O - Opposed Committee; + - indicates a Bill suspended to 1987-88 from 1986-87 Session; ++ - indicates a Bill suspended to 1987-88 Session from the previous two sessions; +++ - indicates a Bill suspended to 1987-88 Session from the previous three sessions; # - indicates a Bill suspended to 1987-88 Session from the previous three sessions; # - indicates a Bill taken (i.e. debated) at 7 o'clock. Please note that suspended Bills may, without debate, be taken through the various stages for a second time at the start of a new Session. Dates underlined refer to 1987. Other dates refer to 1988 unless otherwise stated.

\*\* - Motion to suspend proceedings debated on 8.11.88 or 10.11.88

Note: All the above stages were taken formally, except where the symbol # is used, when debate will have taken place.

The Agents depositing these Bills (from whom copies should be sought) are:

1 Martin & Co; 2 Rees & Freres; 3 Sharpe, Pritchard & Co; 4 Dyson, Bell & Co; 5 Sherwood & Co; 6 John Kennedy & Co; 7 Lewin Gregory & Co.

Name of Bill and Bill Number	Bill Read 1st time	Bill con- sidered	Bill Read 3rd time and sent to Lords	Royal Assent	Cap No
Aberdeen Harbour (16)	22 Oct	28 Oct	29 Oct	16 Nov	xxi 1987
Bredero (Bon Accord Centre, Aberdeen) (191)	6 Jul	12 Jul	14 Jul	29 Jul	xix 1988
British Railways (132)	23 Mar	29 Mar	30 Mar	3 Мау	xii 1988
Highland Region (Lochinver Harbour) (192)	6 Jul	12 Jul	14 Jul	29 Jul	xx 1988
Highland Region Harbours (Miscellaneous Powers) (47)	5 Nov	12 Nov	16 Nov	10 Dec	xxv 1987
Lerwick Harbour (48)	5 Nov	12 Nov	16 Nov	10 Dec	xxvi 1987
Scottish Development Agency (Oban South Pier) (145)	20 Apr	26 Apr	27 Apr	26 May	xv 1988
Western Isles Islands Council (Vatersay Causeway) (9)	9 Jul	15 Jul	16 Jul	23 Jul	xviii 1987

#### SECTION C3

## CHURCH OF ENGLAND MEASURES

Measures passed by the National Assembly of the Church (ie the General Synod) and subsequently considered by Parliament and presented for the Royal Assent.

Measure No	<u>Title</u>	Paper No	Royal Assent
1	Church of England (Legal Aid and Miscellaneous Provisions)	HC 355 1986-87	9.2.88
2	Church Commissioners (Assistance for Priority Areas)	HC 376 1987-88	3.5.88
3	Church of England (Ecumenical Relations)	HC 418 1987-88	29.7.88
4	Church of England (Pensions)	HC 484 1987-88	27.10.88

#### **NORTHERN IRELAND LEGISLATION**

Only legislation laid under Sch. 1 (1) of the Northern Ireland Act 1974 is included in this Section.

Proposal for a draft Order, and Explanatory Document, received in this office.

D Draft Order laid before Parliament.

C Motion in House of Commons to approve Order debated and agreed to.

Similar motion in House of Lords.

Draft Order considered by a Standing Committee on Statutory Instruments. (Formal approval by the House next day unless otherwise shown).

Proposal for a draft Order considered in the Northern Ireland Committee. SC

NIC -

Urgent order (not in draft form) laid before Parliament. Consequential Order (not in draft form) laid before Parliament. Q

Taken formally.

Adoption

P: 21.10.86 D: 19.11.87 L: 7.12.87 SC: 8.12.87

AIDS (Control) Q: 2.11.87

Appropriation (No 2) 1987

D: 7.5.87 C: 7.7.87 L: 16.7.87

Appropriation (No 3) 1987

D: 11.11.87 C: 1.12.87 L: 7.12.87

Appropriation 1988

D: 10.2.88 C: 1.3.88 L: 16.3.88

Appropriation (No 2) 1988

D: 26.5.88 C: 29.6.88 L: 1.7.88

P: 3.12.86 D: 29.4.87 C: 23.7.87 L: 21.10.87

Consumer Protection

Q: 15.12.87

Corneal Tissue

P: 1.10.87 D: 28.6.88 SC: 28.7.88 L: 20.7.88

D: 20.10.88 C: 8.11.88 L: 10.11.88

Criminal Injuries (Compensation)

P: 21.1.87 D: 1.2.88 C: 25.2.88 L: 12.4.88

Criminal Justice (Evidence, Etc)

Q: 10.11.88

Criminal Justice (Firearms)

Q: 10.11.88

Criminal Justice (Serious Fraud)

Q: 10.11.88

Crossbows

Q: 11.5.88

**Employment and Training (Amendment)** 

Q: 6.7.88

Electricity Supply (Amendment)

D: 30.6.87 C: 7.7.87 L: 14.7.87 P: 26.1.87

**Enduring Powers of Attorney** 

D: 6.4.87 P: 24.7.86 L: \*6.7.87 C: \*23.7.87

Farm Businesses Q: 16.8.88

Fisheries (Amendment)

P: 15.3.88

#### Northern Ireland Legislation (Continued)

Coporal Assistance	Crambo (Ab-Et)			
General Assistance ( P: 18.1.88	D: 1.3.88	C: 8.3.87	L: 23.3.88	
Guardianship				
P: 21.3.85				
Housing				
P: 8.3.88	D: 13.7.88	C: 27.10.88	L: 31,10.88	
aganside Developm	nent			
P: 25.5.88	D: 25.10.88			
icensing				
P: 27.10.86	D: 2.7.87	C: 14.7.87	L: 16.7.87	
imitation (Amendme P: 26.11.86	ent) D: 2.4.87	L: 6.7.87	C: *23.7.87	
1. 20.11.00	D. 2.4.07	L. 0.7.07	0. 20.7.07	
Malicious Communic	ations			
Q: 10.11.88				
Matrimonial and Fan	nily Proceedings			
P: 24.2.87				
Minors' Contracts				
P: 29.10.87	D: 16.3.88	L: 12.4.88	SC: 26.4.88	
Nature Conservation	and Amonity I ar	nde (Amendment		
P: 9.12.87	D: 14.11.88	ids (Allendrich		
Occupiers' Liability P: 3.10.85	D: 2.4.87	C: *11.5.87	L: *6.7.87	
1. 0.10.00	D. 2.4.07	0. 11.0.01	2. 0.7.07	
Police and Criminal	Evidence			
P: 20.7.88				
Registration of Clubs		THE PARTY OF THE P	and and and	
P: 27.10.86	D: 2.7.87	C: 14.7.87	L: 16.7.87	
Scotch Whisky				
Q: 9.11.88				
Sex Discrimination				
P: 2.12.87	D: 18.5.88	L: 4.7.88	C: 5.7.88	
0i-l 0it-				
Social Security Q: 31.3.88				
Statistics of Trade a		SC: 04 0 00	L: 25.2.88	
P: 28.1.85	D: 28.1.88	SC: 24.2.88	L. 25.2.00	
Treatment of Offend	ers			
P: 30.6.88				
Wages				
P: 5.3.87	D: 10.12.87	C: 7.3.88	L: 24.3.88	
Nator (Eluoridation)				
Water (Fluoridation) P: 1.12.86	D: 27.4.87	C: 23.7.87	L: 21.10.87	
		TO SHARE STATE OF THE PARTY OF		

# PUBLIC AND GENERAL ACTS RECEIVING ROYAL ASSENT

0

担

RESERVED BEREFE

1987 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57	Appropriation (Bill title: Consolidated Fund (Appropriation)) Finance (No 2) (Bill title: Finance) British Shipbuilders (Borrowing Powers) Channel Tunnel Consolidated Fund (No 2) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund) Consolidated Fund (No 3) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund (No 2)) Scottish Development Agency Urban Development Corporations (Financial Limits)	23.7 23.7 23.7 23.7 17.11 10.12 17.12 17.12
51 52 53 54 55 56	Finance (No 2) (Bill title: Finance) British Shipbuilders (Borrowing Powers) Channel Tunnel Consolidated Fund (No 2) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund) Consolidated Fund (No 3) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund (No 2)) Scottish Development Agency	23.7 23.7 23.7 17.11 10.12 17.12
51 52 53 54 55 56	Finance (No 2) (Bill title: Finance) British Shipbuilders (Borrowing Powers) Channel Tunnel Consolidated Fund (No 2) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund) Consolidated Fund (No 3) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund (No 2)) Scottish Development Agency	23.7 23.7 23.7 17.11 10.12 17.12
53 54 55 56	British Shipbuilders (Borrowing Powers) Channel Tunnel Consolidated Fund (No 2) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund) Consolidated Fund (No 3) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund (No 2)) Scottish Development Agency	23.7 17.11 10.12 17.12
54 55 56	Consolidated Fund (No 2) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund) Consolidated Fund (No 3) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund (No 2)) Scottish Development Agency	17.11 10.12 17.12
55 56	Consolidated Fund (No 3) (Bill title: Consolidated Fund (No 2)) Scottish Development Agency	10.12 17.12
56	Scottish Development Agency	17.12
1988		
1	Income and Corporation Taxes	9.2
2	Arms Control and Disarmament (Privileges and Immunities)	9.2
3	Land Registration	15.3
5	Norfolk and Suffolk Broads Welsh Development Agency	15.3 15.3
6	Consolidated Fund (Bill title: Consolidated Fund (No 3))	15.3
7	Social Security	15.3
8	Multilateral Investment Guarantee Agency	24.3
9	Local Government	24.3
10	Duchy of Lancaster	3.5
11	Regional Development Grants (Termination)	3.5
12	Merchant Shipping	3.5 10.5
13 14	Coroners Immigration	10.5
15	Public Utility Transfers and Water Charges	10.5
16	Farmland and Rural Development	10.5
17	Licensing	19.5
18	Matrimonial Proceedings (Transfers)	19.5
19	Employment	26.5
20	Dartford-Thurrock Crossing	28.6
21	Consumer Arbitration Agreements Scotch Whisky	28.6 28.6
23	Motor Vehicles (Wearing of Seat Belts by Children)	28.6
24	Community Health Councils (Access to Information)	29.7
25	Licensing (Retail Sales)	29.7
26	Landlord and Tenant	29.7
27	Malicious Communications	29.7
28	Access to Medical Reports	29.7
29 30	Protection of Animals (Amendment) Environment and Safety Information	29.7 29.7
31	Protection Against Cruel Tethering (Bill title: Horses, Ponies and	29.7
	Donkeys (No 2))	
32	Civil Evidence (Scotland)	29.7
33	Criminal Justice	29.7
34	Legal Aid	29.7
35	British Steel	29.7 29.7
36 37	Court of Session Electricity (Financial Provisions) (Scotland)	29.7
38	Appropriation (Bill title: Consolidated Fund (Appropriation) (No 2))	29.7
39	Finance (Bill title: Finance (No 2))	29.7
40	Education Reform	29.7
41	Local Government Finance	29.7
42	Solicitors (Scotland)	29.7
43	Housing (Scotland)	2.11
44	Foreign Marriage (Amendment)	2.11 15.11
45 46	Firearms (Amendment) European Communities (Finance)	15.11
47	School Boards (Scotland)	15.11
48	Copyright, Designs and Patents	15.11
49	Health and Medicines	15.11
50	Housing	15.11
51	Rate Support Grants	15.11
52	Road Traffic	15.11
53 54	Road Traffic Offenders Road Traffic (Consequential Provisions)	15.11 15.11

# LOCAL AND PERSONAL ACTS RECEIVING ROYAL ASSENT

Cap no	<u>Title</u>	Date of Royal Assent
1987		
1001		
xviii	Western Isles Islands Council (Vatersay Causeway) Order Confirmation	23.7
xix	Masonic Trust for Girls and Boys	23.7
XX	Essex	23.7
xxi	Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation	16.11
xxii	National Provident Institution	16.11
xxiii	Bexley London Borough Council	16.11
xxiv	Dyfed	16.11
XXV	Highland Region Harbours (Miscellaneous Powers) Order Confirmation	10.12
xxvi	Lerwick Harbour Order Confirmation	10.12
xxvii	Associated British Ports	10.12
xxviii	British Waterways	17.12
xxix	British Railways	17.12
Total Control	Entition (territory)	17.12
1000		
1988		
i	Greater Manchester (Light Rapid Transit System)	9.2
ii	Greater Manchester (Light Rapid Transit System) (No 2)	9.2
iii	University College, London	9.2
iv	Keble College Oxford	15.3
V	Selwyn College Cambridge	15.3
vi	Whitchurch Bridge	15.3
vii	Hastings Borough Council	15.3
viii	City of Westminster	15.3
ix	Liverpool Exchange	15.3
X	Corn Exchange	15.3
xi	British Railways (London)	24.3
xii	British Railways Order Confirmation	3.5
xiii	Saint Bennet Fink Burial Ground (City of London)	3.5
xiv	Felixstowe Dock and Railway	19.5
XV	Scottish Development Agency (Oban South Pier) Order Confirmation	26.5
xvi	Dartmouth-Kingswear Floating Bridge	28.6
xvii	Associated British Ports (Barrow)	28.6
xviii	Brighton and Preston Cemetery	28.6
xix	Bredero (Bon Accord Centre, Aberdeen) Order Confirmation	29.7
XX	Highland Region (Lochinver Harbour) Order Confirmation	29.7
xxi	Eastbourne Harbour	29.7
xxii	Tor Bay Harbour (Oxen Cove and Coastal Footpath, Brixham)	29.7
xxiii	University of Wales College of Cardiff	29.7
xxiv	Imperial College	29.7
XXV	British Waterways	29.7
	County of South Glamorgan (Taff Crossing)	29.7
xxvii	South Yorkshire Light Rail Transit	27.10
	Harwich Parkeston Quay	27.10
xxviii		15.11
xxix	Northampton	10.11

# **PUBLIC BILLS - SOME BASIC FIGURES**

The following table notes the numbers of Bills in the various categories which were introduced and the numbers which were successful.

Categories of Bill and codes (see key to Section C1)	Number Introduced	Number Unsuccessful	Number receiving Royal Assent
GOVERNMENT BILLS			
Consolidation Bills (B)	6	a like he many and	6
Other Government Bills (A)	43	Control of	43
Total Government Bills (A,B)	49		49
PRIVATE MEMBERS' BILLS	Service Service	OUR PART THAT SA	Statement would
Ballot Bills (W)	20	11	9
SO No 58 Bills (X)	37	35	2
Ten Minute Rule Bills (Y)	58	58	10 acidid n=6.0
Lords' Private Members Bills (Z)	4	2	2
Total Private Members' Bills (W,X,Y,Z)	119	106	13
TOTAL PUBLIC BILLS	168	106	62

#### Notes:

- Excluded from above are:
   a) Order Confirmation/Provisional Order Bills (see Section C2)
   b) Bills introduced into the Lords but never brought to the Commons (3)
- 2 The number of motions for leave to bring in ten minute rule bills which were negatived was 10.

#### SUBJECT INDEX TO WHITE PAPERS AND POLICY DOCUMENTS

The following is a basic subject listing of White Papers and policy documents which reached the Public Information Office during the session. The subject is shown (the exact title may not be quoted in full), followed by the Command number or issuing Department, and the date received by the Public Information Office.

White Papers, for the purposes of this section, are issued by the Government as policy statements. They often set out proposals for legislative changes, which may be debated before a Bill is introduced. On occasions, they may invite comments. Government replies to Select Committee Reports are sometimes called White Papers: these are not included here (see Section B1).

Agriculture - annual review - Cm 299 - 26.1.88 Broadcasting - Cm 517 - 7.11.88 Cash limits - provisional outturn 1986-87 - Cm 189 - 24.7.87 Cash limits - provisional outturn 1987-88 - Cm 431 - 22.7.88 Census of population - Cm 430 - 19.7.88 Cities - action for - Depts of Trade & Industry, Environment & Employment - 7.3.88

Civil research & development - Cm 185 - 27.7.87 Coal mining - subsidence damage compensation scheme - Cm 235 - 29.10.87 Defence estimates – Cm 344 – 17.5.88
Education – modern languages – Dept of Education & Science – 27.1.88 Education - top-up loans for students - Cm 520 - 9.11.88 Education (Wales) - national curriculum - Welsh Office - 7.12.87 Education (wales) - national curriculum - weish childs

Electricity - privatisation - Cm 322 - 25.2.88

Electricity (Scotland) - privatisation - Cm 327 - 2.3.88

Employment - training for - Cm 316 - 16.2.88

Employment (Northern Ireland) - Cm 380 - 25.5.88 Enterprise - Cm 278 - 12.1.88 Enterprise - Cm 512 - 2.11.88 European Communities - 1987 budget - Cm 194 - 23.7.87 European Communities - 1988 budget - Cm 525 - 11.11.88 European Communities - developments Jan-June 1987 - Cm 205 - 8.9.87 European Communities - developments July-Dec 1987 - Cm 336 - 17.3.88 European Communities - developments Jan-June 1988 - Cm 467 - 5.10.88 Expenditure Plans 1988-89 to 1990-91 - Cm 288 - 20.1.88 Expenditure - planning total - Cm 441 - 27.7.88
Financial reporting to Parliament - Cm 375 - 6.5.88
Health - primary care - Cm 249 - 25.11.87 Hong Kong - annual report - Cm 293 - 14.1.88 Housing - Cm 214 - 29.9.87 Housing (Scotland) - Cm 242 - 10.11.87 Human fertilisation & embryology - Cm 259 - 26.11.87 Local authorities - conduct of business - Cm 433 - 21.7.88 Merchant shipping - Cm 239 - 2.11.87 Mergers policy - Dept of Trade & Industry - 8.3.88 Northern Ireland - employment - Cm 380 - 25.5.88 Official Secrets Act reform - Cm 408 - 29.6.88 Planning - public expenditure - Cm 441 - 27.7.88
Primary health care - Cm 249 - 25.11.87 Scotland - new life for urban - Scottish Office - 29.3.88 Students - top-up loans - Cm 520 - 9.11.88

Teachers' pay & conditions 1987 - Dept of Education & Science - 6.8.87

Teachers' pay & conditions 1988 - Dept of Education & Science - 16.6.88 Training for employment - Cm 316 - 16.2.88

# SUBJECT INDEX TO GREEN PAPERS AND CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS

The following is a list of Green Papers (a term used to cover all consultation documents, discussion papers, and other items which set out proposals which are at a formative or uncompleted stage and are issued to solicit comment) received by the Public Information Office in the 1987-88 Session. The non-appearance of an item in this list cannot be taken as evidence that such a title does not exist. Most items are published or 'made available' by individual Government departments or agencies, from whom copies should be sought. (Some also appear in the Chadwyck Healey Catalogue of British Official Publications, not published by HMSO.) The few that are HMSO published items have a Command Paper number or other reference attached. Reference to the Weekly Information Bulletin next following the date given will afford details of the consultation period and issuing office address. Dates refer to 1988 unless otherwise specified.

AIDS - Report of the Working Group on the Monitoring and Surveillance of HIV infection and AIDS. DHSS. [26.5]

Access to Personal Files Act 1987 - Draft circular LAC (88) HC (88). Department of Health. [16.8]

Access to Personal Files Act 1987 - Housing Authority Tenants' Records. Department of the Environment. [31.10]

Agriculture - Licences to supply cattle semen. Ministry of Agriculture Fisheries and Food. [23.6]

Agriculture - An extension scheme for cereals and beef. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food [8.12.87]

Agriculture - Crop protection: research and development involving mycology, storage pests, mammals and birds. Crop Protection Research Committee, Ministry of Agriculture Fisheries and Food. [26.1]

Agriculture - Report on Plant Variety Testing and Seed Certification. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries & Food. [15.4]

Agriculture - Agricultural land classification of England and Wales: revised guidelines and criteria for grading. Land Use and Tenure Division, Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [25.2]

Agriculture - Review of Potato Market Policy. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [6.9]

Agriculture - Proposals for regulations on licensing of poultry slaughtermen and supervision of welfare in poultry slaughterhouses. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [1.9]

Animal Welfare - Proposals for new welfare controls in livestock markets. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [15.11]

Animal Welfare - Proposed regulations to improve the welfare of farm animals. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [11.8.87]

Animal Welfare - Farm Animal Welfare Council proposals on pig-keeping systems. Farm Animal Welfare Council. [24.3]

Animal Welfare - Proposed new welfare code for goats. Animal Welfare Division, Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [19.11.87]

Animal Welfare - Advice to Ministers on the transport of unfit animals. Farm Animal Welfare Council Secretariat. [11.4]

Banking - Regulation of the wholesale markets in sterling, foreign exchange and bullion. Wholesale Markets Supervision Division, Bank of England. [24.7.87]

Broadcasting - Subscription Television. (0113408552) [10.7.87]

Charities - Regulation of charitable appeals in England and Wales. Home Office. [8.9]

Child Abuse (Scotland) - draft circular on child abuse. Scotlish Office. [2.12.87]

Children - Day care and residential holidays for children over five. Department of Health and Social Security. [4.2]

Children - Improvements in the arrangements for care proceedings. Lord Chancellor's Department. [27.7]

Children and Young Persons - Certificates of Unruly Character (Conditions) Order 1977. Home Office. [16.3]

Children and Young Persons (Northern Ireland) - Further consultative papers relating to the revision of the Children and Young Persons Act (Northern Ireland) 1968. Child Care Legislation Unit, Northern Ireland Office. [5.9.87]

Civil Aviation - Night Flights at Gatwick: review of night restrictions policy at Gatwick Airport: proposals for restrictions after 1 April 1988. Department of Transport. [9.11.87]

Civil Aviation - Night flights at Heathrow: review of night restrictions policy at Heathrow Airport: proposals for restrictions after 1 April 1988. Department of Transport. [9.11.87]

Civil Aviation - A draft statement of the Civil Aviation Authority's policies on competition and market entry, anti-competitive behaviour and fares. Civil Aviation Authority. [25.1]

Civil Justice - Civil Justice Review. Cm 394 (0101039425). [7.6]

Coal Mining - Proposals to amend the law relating to coal mining subsidence compensation. Coal Division, Department of Energy. [3.5]

Coinage - United Kingdom Coinage. Royal Mint. [17.7.87]

Commercial Agents - EC Directive on self-employed commercial agents. Department of Trade and Industry. [9.7.87]

Community Charge - Draft regulations on the administration of the community charge. Department of the Environment. [8.11]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Abolition of Domestic Rates Etc (Scotland) Act 1987; the Personal Community Charge (Students) (Scotland) Regulations. Scotlish Office. [26.2]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Abolition of Domestic Rates Etc (Scotland) Act 1987: Students and the Community Charge: registration issues. Scotlish Office. [26.2]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Abolition of Domestic Rates Etc (Scotland) Act 1987: Standard and Collective Community Charges (Scotland) Regulations 1988. Scotlish Office. [10.3]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Abolition of Domestic Rates etc (Scotland) Act 1987: Community Charges Demand Notices Regulations. Scotlish Office. [14.4]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Abolition of Domestic Rates Etc (Scotland) Act 1987. The Personal Community Charge (Exemption for Cross Border Students) (Scotland) Regulations 1988. Scottish Office. [5.10]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Abolition of Domestic Rates Etc (Scotland) Act 1987. Personal Community Charge (Students) (Scotland) (No 2) Regulations 1988. Scottish Office. [7.10]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Local Government Finance Act 1988: Commencement (Scotland) Order 1988. Scottish Office. [8.8]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Draft Abolition of Domestic Rates (Domestic and Part Residential Subjects) (Scotland) Regulations 1988. Scotlish Office. [8.8]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Abolition of Domestic Rates Etc (Scotland) Act 1987; Community Water Charges (Scotland) Regulations 1988. Scottish Office. [8.8]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Abolition of Domestic Rates Etc (Scotland) Act 1987: levying and collection of community charges. Scotlish Office. [15.8]

Community Charge (Scotland) - Abolition of Domestic Rates Etc (Scotland) Act 1987. Proposed regulations for exemption from standard community charge. Scottish Office. [15.8]

Companies - EC memorandum concerning formal proposals for a European Company Statute. Department of Trade and Industry. [13.10]

Companies - EC Proposal for a twelfth company law directive concerning single member private limited companies. Department of Trade and Industry. [13.10]

Companies - Disclosure of interests in shares. Department of Trade and Industry. [1.8]

Companies - Draft European Commission Eleventh Company Law Directive. Department of Trade and Industry. [2.9.87]

Consumer Affairs - New regulations about pyramid selling. Consumer Affairs Division, Department of Trade and Industry. [3.5]

Consumer Affairs - EC Directive on package travel. Consumer Affairs Division, Department of Trade and Industry. [4.5]

Consumer Affairs - Review of Consumer Credit Licensing. Department of Trade and Industry. [2.11]

Consumer Affairs - Consumer Protection Act 1987: Part III: Misleading Price Indications (Draft regulations and code of practice). Consumer Affairs Division, Department of Trade and Industry [28.1]

Consumer Safety - Proposed Cosmetic Products (Safety) (Amendment No 2) Regulations 1988. Department of Trade and Industry. [24.10]

Consumer Safety - Proposed deregulation of fees for proofing of gun barrels. Consumer Safety Unit, Department of Trade and Industry. [26.10.87]

Consumer Safety - Draft Low Voltage, Electrical Equipment (Safety) Regulations 1987. Consumer Safety Unit, Department of Trade and Industry. [3.8.87]

Consumer Safety - Gas Cooking Appliances (Safety) Regulations 1987. Consumer Safety Unit, Department of Trade and Industry. [23.9.87]

Consumer Safety - Benzene Safety Regulations 1987. Consumer Safety Unit, Department of Trade and Industry. [24.9.87]

Consumer Safety - Consumer Protection Act 1987: General Safety Requirement: Draft Approval of Safety Standards Regulations 1987. Consumer Safety Unit, Department of Trade and Industry. [27.7.87]

Consumer Safety - Draft furniture and furnishings (Fire) (Safety) Regulations. Department of Trade and Industry. [2.3]

Consumer Safety - Code of practice on match ignitability of components of upholstery for domestic furniture. Consumer Safety Unit, Department of Trade and Industry. [6.7.87]

Consumer Safety - Proposals for further Cosmetic Products (Safety) (Amendment) Regulations. Consumer Safety Unit, Department of Trade and Industry. [22.1]

Consumer Safety - Ceramic Ware (Safety) Regulations. Department of Trade and Industry. [25.4]

Contracts - Proposed EC unfair contract terms directive. Consumer Affairs Division, Department of Trade and Industry. [21.9.87]

**Conveyancing** - Deposits on exchange of contracts in residential conveyancing - Time for a Change? Conveyancing Standing Committee, Law Commission. [23.3]

Conveyancing - Caveat Emptor in Sales of Land. Conveyancing Standing Committee, Law Commission. [15.11]

Copyright - Draft Bill for reform of the law of copyright. Industrial Property Copyright Department, Department of Trade and Industry. [24.8.87]

Countryside - Changing the rights of way network. Countryside Commission. [23.5]

Countryside - Paths, routes and trails. Countryside Commission. [23.5]

Countryside - Planning for change: development in a green countryside. Countryside Commission. [25.7]

Countryside - The Thames Path: Proposed long distance route from the Thames Barrier to the source, Kemble. Countryside Commission. [5.8.87]

County Courts - Curtailment of County Courts' Banking Function - Suitors' Cash. Lord Chancellor's Department. [27.7]

County Courts - Computerisation of County Court procedures in debt cases: the Claims Registry. Lord Chancellor's Department. [9.7.87]

Court of Session (Scotland) - Jury Trials in the Court of Session. Scottish Courts Administration. [14.7]

Criminal Law - International mutual assistance in criminal matters. Home Office. [24.2]

Criminal Law - Conspiracy to defraud: an invitation for views. Law Commission. [18.12.87]

Custody and the Community - Punishment, Custody and the Community. Cm 424 (0101042426) [19.7]

Customs and Excise - Unleaded petrol - the duty differential. HM Customs and Excise. [1.10.87]

Divorce - Facing the future. A Discussion Paper on the Ground for Divorce. HC 479 (0102479887) [25.5]

Doorstep Selling - EC Directive on doorstep selling: proposals for implementing regulations. Consumer Affairs Division, Department of Trade and Industry. [23.7.87]

Driving Licences - Changes in fees for ordinary driving licence. Driver and Vehicle Licensing Centre, Department of Transport. [13.4]

Driving Licences - Fees for heavy goods and public service vehicle drivers' licences. Driver and Vehicle Licensing Centre, Department of Transport. [20.4]

**Economic Development (Northern Ireland)** – Building a stronger economy: the Pathfinder Process. Department of Economic Development, Northern Ireland Office. [7.7.87]

Education - Flexibility of the timing of the act of collective worship during the school day. Department of Education and Science. [9.7.87]

Education - Admission of pupils to maintained schools. Department of Education and Science. [10.7]

Education - A strategy for the Science Base: a discussion document prepared for the Secretary of State for Education and Science by the Advisory Board for the Research Councils. (0112706274) [23.7.87]

Education - Financial Delegation to Schools. Department of Education and Science. [21.7.87]

Education - National Curriculum. Department of Education and Science. [25.7.87]

Education - Grant Maintained Schools. Department of Education and Science. [27.7.87]

Education - Draft Guidance on the Government's proposals for grant maintained schools. Department of Education and Science. [30.6.87]

Education - Organisation of education in inner London. Department of Education and Science. [11.9.87]

Education - Qualified Teacher Status. Department of Education and Science. [25.5]

Education - Draft Circular on Education Support Grants. Department of Education and Science. [24.8.87]

Education - Collection of ethnically based statistics on school teachers. Department of Education and Science. [29.10.87]

Education - Teachers' Pay and Conditions. Cm 238 (0101023820) [27.10.87]

Education - Academic tenure and related matters: outline of proposed legislation. Department of Education and Science. [24.7.87]

Education - Charges for school activities. Department of Education and Science. [2.10.87]

Education - Professional bodies: their qualifications. National Council for Vocational Qualifications. [24.8.87]

Education – Education Reform Bill: Draft guidance on schemes of financial delegation to schools. Department of Education and Science. [29.4]

Education - Admission of pupils to county and voluntary schools. Department of Education and Science. [21.6]

Education - Government and conduct of institutions in the PCFC funding sector. Department of Education and Science. [19.7]

Education - Regulations on the keeping and disclosure of pupils' records. Department of Education and Science and Welsh Office. [6.10.87]

Education - Maintained further education: financing, governance and law. Department of Education and Science. [11.8.87]

Education - Accounting and Auditing in Higher Education. Department of Education and Science. [20.10.87]

Education - A provision to limit the power to award UK degrees. Department of Education and Science. [16.11.87]

Education - Education Reform Bill: Draft guidance on further education schemes and articles of government. Department of Education and Science. [26.4]

Education - National Curriculum, English for ages 5 to 11. National Curriculum Council. [15.11]

Education - National Curriculum, Mathematics for ages 5 to 16. National Curriculum Council. [19.10]

Education - National Curriculum, Science for ages 5 to 16. National Curriculum Council. [19.10]

Education - Draft Circular on the School Curriculum and Assessment. Department of Education & Science. [19.10]

Education - Draft guidance on charging for school activities. Department of Education & Science. [13.9]

Education - Draft circular on religious education and collective worship. Department of Education and Science. [30.9]

Education - MSC study of funding of vocational education and training (VET). Vocational Education and Training Group, Manpower Services Commission. [16.11.87]

Education (Northern Ireland) - Education Reform in Northern Ireland. Policy Planning Branch, Department of Education, Northern Ireland Office. [30.3]

Education (Scotland) - School management and the role of parents. Scotlish Education Department. [13.8.87]

Education (Scotland) - Access to further education student records. Scottish Education Department. [23.8]

Education (Scotland) - Curriculum and assessment in Scotland. Scotlish Education Department. [19.11.87]

Education (Scotland) - School Boards (Scotland) Bill: Draft regulations. Scottish Education Department. [18.7]

Education (Scotland) - School Boards (Scotland) Bill: draft guidance on elections and ballots. Scotlish Education Department. [10.11]

Education (Wales) - Admission of pupils to maintained schools. Education Department, Welsh Office. [13.7.87]

Education (Wales) - Financial Delegation to Schools Schools Division, Welsh Office. [25.7.87]

Education (Wales) - Flexibility of the timing of the act of collective worship during the school day. Education Department, Welsh Office. [19.10.87]

Education (Wales) - Charges for school activities. Education Department, Welsh Office. [19.10]

Education (Wales) - Collection of statistics on ethnic origins of further education students. Welsh Office. [30.3]

Education (Wales) - Education Reform Bill: draft guidance on further and higher education funding schemes and articles of government. Welsh Office. [17.5]

Education (Wales) - Education Reform Bill: Draft guidance on reform of college governing bodies. Welsh Office. [23.5]

Elections (Northern Ireland) - Elected Representatives and the Democratic Process in Northern Ireland. (0117013331) [12.10.87]

Electricity - Proposed supply code for the electricity supply industry. Department of Energy. [23.3]

Electricity (Scotland) - Proposed supply code for the electricity supply industry. Industry Department for Scotland. [25.3]

Employment (Young People) (Northern Ireland) - Restrictions on the employment of young people and the removal of sex discrimination in legislation. Department of Economic Development, Northern Ireland Office. [12.4]

Environment - A further consultation paper on the implementation of the European Community's Directive on environmental assessment. Department of the Environment. [28.1]

Films - Supply of films. Publication of notice of intention, published in London, Belfast, Edinburgh Gazettes and in Screen International Magazine on 19 August and in the Times and Guardian newspapers on 18 August. [18.8]

Financial Services - Draft regulations on investment and borrowing powers for properties, future and options, and mixed funds. Department of Trade and Industry. [10.11.87]

Financial Services - Draft order specifying exemptions from Financial Services Act, restrictions on advertising. Department of Trade and Industry. [18.11.87]

Fire Precautions - Guide to fire precautions in places of work that require a fire certificate. Fire and Emergency Planning Department, Home Office. [5.10]

Fisheries - Sea fish conservation (Bass). Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [2.3]

Fisheries - Salmon Dealer Licensing. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food and Scottish Office. [19.1]

Fisheries - Restrictive Licensing Scheme - detailed arrangements for temporary restrictions on licence transfers. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [28.7]

Fisheries (Scotland) - Proposed regulations for the passage of salmon. Department of Agriculture and Fisheries for Scotland. [18.8]

Fisheries (Scotland) - Review of the inshore fishing regime. Department of Agriculture and Fisheries for Scotland. [14.4]

Fisheries (Scotland) - Definition of lawful salmon netting methods. Department of Agriculture and Fisheries for Scotland. [25,5]

Food - Additives in Food: the Emulsifiers and Stabilisers Regulations. Standards Division, Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [2 papers, 28.3 & 5.10]

Food - Proposals to amend the Preservatives in Food Regulations. Standards Division, Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [24.3]

Food - Proposals for controls on the composition and labelling of fat spreads. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [11.4]

Food - Proposed amendments to food additive regulations, in use of lactitol in food. Food Standards Division, Ministry of Agriculture Fisheries and Food. [18.7]

Food - Proposals for regulations relating to the caffeine levels of soft drinks. Food Standards Division, Ministry of Agriculture Fisheries and Food. [18.5]

Food - EC Proposals for Directives on compulsory nutrition labelling and on nutrition labelling rules for foodstuffs. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [14.11]

Food - Proposed amendments to the Food Hygiene (General) Regulations 1970. Department of Health and Social Security. [25.6.87]

Food - Use of the word "Natural" and similar terms in the labelling, advertising and presentation of food. Standards Division, Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [21.12.87]

Food - Proposals for Food Labelling (Amendment) Regulations: alcoholic strength labelling. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [15.2]

Food Labelling - Draft guidelines for nutrition labelling. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [27.7.87]

Health (Wales) - Future of the Artificial Limb and Appliance Centre service in Wales. Artificial Limb and Appliance Centre, Cardiff. [11.6.87]

Health and Safety - Health and Safety (First Aid) Regulations 1981: draft revised approved code of practice. (0118839659) [28.9.87]

Health and Safety - Review of the Health and Safety (Genetic Manipulation) Regulations 1978. Health and Safety Executive. [21.9.87]

Health and Safety - Draft Health and Safety Information for Employees Regulations 198-. (0118834967) [18.12.87]

Health and Safety - Prevention of damage to hearing from noise at work: draft proposals for regulations and guidance. (0118834959) [18.12.87]

Health and Safety - The Tolerability of Risk from Nuclear Power Stations. (0118839829) [4.2]

Health and Safety - Handling loads at work: proposals for regulations and guidance. Sir Robert Jones Memorial Workshops. [31.10]

Hong Kong - 1987 review of developments in representative Government. Survey Office, Hong Kong. [6.7.87]

Hospitals (Scotland) - Proposal to build a private hospital at Clydebank. Scotlish Home and Health Department. [14.7.87]

Housing - Finance for housing associations: the Government's proposals. Department of the Environment. [21.9.87]

Housing - Housing Action Trusts. Department of the Environment. [8.10.87]

Housing - Local Authority Housing Subsidy System Reckonable Expenditure on Management and Maintenance for 1988/89. Department of the Environment. [18.9.87]

Housing - Right to buy: legislative proposals. Department of the Environment. [1.10.87]

Housing - Home Improvement policy: the Government's proposals. Department of the Environment. [11.11.87]

Housing - Private rented sector: the Government's legislative proposals. Department of the Environment and Welsh Office. [1.10.87]

Housing - Tenants' Choice: the Government's proposals for legislation. Department of the Environment and Welsh Office. [2.11.87]

Housing - Housing in rural areas: village housing and new villages. Department of the Environment. [6.7]

Housing - Houses in multiple occupation. Department of the Environment. [20.7]

Housing - New Towns Housing Transfer. Department of the Environment. [30.8]

Housing - Disputes about valuations under the Leasehold Reform Act 1967. Department of the Environment. [27.6]

Housing - Local Authority Housing Subsidy System, determination of reckonable income for 1989/90. Local Authority Housing Finance Division, Department of the Environment. [14.11]

Housing (Scotland) - Private rented sector: the Government's legislative proposals for Scotland and the implications for housing benefit. Scotlish Development Department. [19.11.87]

**Housing (Scotland)** - Private housing renewal: the Government's proposals for Scotland. Scotlish Development Department. [26.5]

Housing (Wales) - Finance for housing associations in Wales: the Government's proposals. Welsh Office. [16.11.87]

Housing (Wales) - Disputes about valuations under the Leasehold Reform Act 1967. Welsh Office. [27.6]

Information Technology - Draft plans for the new national collaborative research and development programme in information technology. Information Engineering Division, Department of Trade and Industry. [24.3]

Inland Revenue - Disincorporation. Inland Revenue/Department of Trade and Industry. [2.7.87]

Inland Revenue - Unapproved employee share schemes - review of Section 79, Finance Act 1972. Inland Revenue. [27.10.87]

Inland Revenue - Controlled foreign companies: Chapter VI Finance Act 1984: excluded countries list. Inland Revenue. [5.2]

Inner Cities - City Grant: simplification of urban grants. Department of the Environment. [8.3]

Inner Cities (Wales) - Urban Investment Grant. Welsh Office. [18.10]

Insurance Companies - Proposal for EC Directive on the annual accounts and consolidated accounts of insurance undertakings. Insurance Division, Department of Trade and Industry. [24.3]

Land - Compulsory Purchase of Land Regulations 1987. Department of the Environment. [25.9.87]

Land - Vesting Declarations Regulations 1987. Department of the Environment. [25.9.87]

Law (Scotland) - Proposed changes in the law of domicile. Scottish Courts Administration. [23.10.87]

Libraries - Financing our Public Library Service: Four Subjects for Debate. Cm 324. (0101032420) [24.2]

Licensing - The Licensing Act 1964: Government proposals for reform. Home Office. [5.8.87]

Licensing - A proposed amendment to the Licensing Bill. Home Office. [23.12.87]

Local Government - New powers for local authority auditors. Department of the Environment. [12.11.87]

Local Government - Proposed amendment to public rights to inspect local authorities' accounts and associated records. FLER Division, Department of the Environment. [9.7.87]

Local Government - Specific grants on loan charges. Department of the Environment. [28.7]

Local Government - Paying for Local Government: Non-domestic rates. Amendments to the Rating Legislation in England and Wales. Finance Local Taxation Division, Department of the Environment, or Finance Local Government Division, Welsh Office. [4.8.87]

Local Government - Competition in the provision of local authority services: implementation and exemptions. Department of the Environment. [2.11.87]

Local Government - Appeals and valuation and community charge tribunals. Department of the Environment. [16.11.87]

Local Government - Local Government Bill: Race relations matters. Department of the Environment. [9.2]

Local Government - Local authorities' interests in companies. Department of the Environment. [13.6]

Local Government - Rate Support Grant Settlement 1988/89. Department of the Environment. [27.10.87]

Local Government - Rate Support Grant 1983/84; 84/85; 86/87. Department of the Environment. [10.12.87]

Local Government - Rate Support Grant Settlement 1989/90. Department of the Environment. [11.11]

Local Government - Local authorities' interests in companies. Department of the Environment. [13.6]

Local Government - Capital expenditure and finance. Department of the Environment/Welsh Office. [7.7]

Local Government - Rate Support Grant Supplementary Report Report (England) (No 4) 1985/86; 1986/87. Department of the Environment. [13.10]

Local Government - Competition for education related activities following the abolition of ILEA. Department of the Environment. [14.11]

Local Government - Rate Support Grant Supplementary (England) (No 2) Report 1987/88 and (No 1) Report 1988/89. Department of Environment. [1.11]

Local Government Act 1985 - Hampstead Heath. Department of the Environment, Greater London Regional Office. [14.6]

**Local Government (Scotland)** - Competition in the provision of local authority services: implementation and exemptions. Scotlish Development Department. [4.11.87]

Local Government (Wales) - Welsh Rate Support Grant Report 1989/90 and Supplementary RSG Reports for 1986/87, 1987/88 and 1988/89. Welsh Office. [11.11]

London Regional Transport - future strategy. London Regional Transport. [25.2]

**London Residuary Body** - Disposal of remaining housing mortgages. Department of the Environment. [6.7]

**Medicines** - Proposals on information about medicines. Department of Health and Social Security. [5.2]

Medicines - Medicines Act 1968. Proposal to revoke Article 3 of the Medicines (Exemption from Licences) (Special and Transitional Cases) Order 1971. Department of Health and Social Security. [8,3]

Medicines - Further proposed amendments to the Medicines (Products other than Veterinary Drugs) (Prescription Only) Order 1983 and proposed amendment to the Medicines (Pharmacy and General Sale Exemption) Order 1988. Department of Health and Social Security. [31.3]

Medicines - Medicines Act 1968: importation of medicinal products in their final packaging. Department of Health and Social Security. [16.6]

Medicines - Proposals on Original Pack Dispensing. Department of Health. [11.11]

Mental Health - draft code of practice on the admission to hospital and the treatment of mentally disordered patients. Department of Health and Social Security. [4.9.87]

Mental Health (Scotland) - Mental Health (Scotland) Act 1984: draft code of practice. Scottish Home and Health Department. [15.7]

Mental Health (Wales) - Mental illness services: a strategy for Wales. Welsh Office. [17.5]

Merchant Shipping - Operational procedures, management ashore, log book entries and reporting of accidents. Herald of Free Enterprise Consultative Document No 6. Department of Transport. [2 papers, 12.11.87 and 8.6]

Merchant Shipping - Ferry Safety, document No 7, Proposed regulations requiring the weighing of freight vehicles before loading. Department of Transport. [2 papers, 31.12.87 and 1.6]

Merchant Shipping - Herald of Free Enterprise, Consultative document No 8. Emergency equipment lockers, permanent footholds and means of bridging gaps. Department of Transport. [2 papers, 22.1 and 5.8]

Merchant Shipping - Herald of Free Enterprise, Consultative document No 2 (follow up). Proposed regulations relating to the loading of RO/RO passenger ferries. Marine Inspectorate, Department of Transport. [11.2]

**Merchant Shipping** - Proposed regulations requiring the use of boarding cards by passengers using passenger ferries. Department of Transport. [5.11.87]

Merchant Shipping - Herald of Free Enterprise, consultative document No 9. Reduction of lifeboat capacity and replacement with increased liferaft capacity. Department of Transport. [2 papers, 17.2 and 5.8]

Merchant Shipping - Herald of Free Enterprise Consultative Document No 10. Safety of roll on/roll off passenger ships: proposed regulations and code of practice relating to the stowage and securing of vehicles and cargo units. Department of Transport. [24.8]

Merchant Shipping - Report of the Light Dues Working Party. Department of Transport. [7.11]

Metrication - European Commission draft proposals on the use of metric units. Department of Trade and Industry. [25.10]

Milk - Efficiency scrutiny of the enforcement of the Milk and Dairies Regulations in England and Wales. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [4.7]

Milk - Proposals for revised importation of milk regulations. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [10.8]

Milk Quotas - Mobility of milk quotas. Ministry of Agriculture Fisheries and Food. [29.6.87]

Milk Quotas - Milk quota transfers. Ministry of Agriculture Fisheries and Food. [4.2]

Museums - Powers of disposal from museum and gallery collections. Office of Arts and Libraries. [10.8]

Res

New Towns Act 1981 - Section 51A defects grant. Department of the Environment. [12.10]

Nuclear Waste - The Way Forward: the development of a repository for the disposal of low and intermediate level radioactive waste. United Kingdom NIREX Limited. [12.11.87]

Nursing Homes (Northern Ireland) - Registration and inspection of private and voluntary residential and nursing homes. Department of Health and Social Services, Northern Ireland Office. [10.11]

Origin Marking - Proposed Trade Descriptions (Place of Production) (Marking) Order. Department of Trade and Industry. [1.8]

Pensions - Occupational Pension Schemes: Balancing the interests of employers and of scheme members. Occupational Pensions Board. [31.5]

Pensions - Proposed advertising controls for deposit-based personal pensions. Department of Health and Social Security. [31.5]

Pesticides - Pesticide residues. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [15.4]

Pesticides - Food and Environment Protection Act 1985: Revised draft code of practice on the sale and supply of pesticides for agricultural use. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [7.10]

Pesticides - Part III of the Food and Environment Protection Act 1985: Revised Draft Statutory Code of Practice for Pesticides Users: the Green Code. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. [17.10]

Planning - Major retail development: planning guidance. Department of the Environment. [12.11.87]

Planning - Draft Town and Country Planning (Simplified Planning Zones) Regulations 1987. Department of the Environment. [15.7.87]

Planning - Consolidation of the Town and Country Planning General Development Order. Department of the Environment. [4.2]

Planning -Part III of the Local Government Planning and Land Act 1980: Competition for building and maintenance work. Department of the Environment. [28.7]

Planning - Draft planning policy guidance note. Department of the Environment. [20.6]

Planning - Proposed amendments to the Town and Country Planning (Compensation for Restrictions on Mineral Working) Regulations 1985. Department of the Environment. [2.11.87]

Planning (Wales) - Draft Town and Country Planning (Simplified Planning Zones) Regulations 1987. Welsh Office. [27.7.87]

Police Complaints Authority - Recommendations contained in the Triennial Review Report for 1985-88 of the Police Complaints Authority. Home Office. [14.11]

Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 - Draft Code of Practice (E) on Tape Recording. Home Office. [14,6]

Pollution - Integrated Pollution Control. Department of the Environment. [28.7]

Pollution - Control of Pollution Act 1974. The Control of Pollution (Landed Ships' Waste) (Amendment) Regulations 1988. Department of the Environment. [18.10]

Prisons - Report of HM Chief Inspector of Prison's review of prisoners' grievance procedures. Home Office. [10.3]

Prisons (Scotland) - Custody and Care. Scottish Prison Service. [17.3]

Prisons (Scotland) - Assessment and Control: the management of violent and disruptive prisoners. Scotlish Prison Service. [18.10]

**Product Licences** - Applications for product licences for contact lenses. Department of Health and Social Security. [20.5]

Public Health (Northern Ireland) - Review of public health and air pollution controls in Northern Ireland. Environmental Protection Division, Department of the Environment for Northern Ireland. [2.11.87]

Radio - Radio Alarms. Radio Communications Division, Department of Trade and Industry, [6.10.87]

Radio Frequencies - The use of the radio frequency spectrum above 30 GHz. Department of Trade and Industry. [23.9]

Rateable Value - Rateable value substitutes. Department of the Environment. [23.12.87]

Remand System - Private Sector Involvement in the Remand System. Cm 434 (0101043422) [26.7]

Representation of the People - British Citizens Overseas. Home Office. [3.5]

Residential Care - Public support for residential care. Report of a joint central and local Government working party. Department of Health and Social Security. [23.7.87]

Sale of Goods - Review of the law on the sale and supply of goods. Consumer Affairs Division, Department of Trade and Industry. [17.7.87]

Securities and Investments Board - Investors' compensation scheme. Securities and Investments Board. [5.5]

Securities and Investments Board - Further sundry proposed amendments to the rulebook. Securities and Investments Board. [16.6]

Securities and Investments Board - Further sundry proposed amendments to the rulebook. A consultative paper (No 2). Securities and Investments Board. [23.6]

Social Security - Council Directive 86/378 EEC: Implementation of the principle of equal treatment for men and women in occupational social security schemes. Department of Health and Social Security. [28.7]

Social Work - Access to Personal Files Act 1987: Social Work Regulations. Department of Health and Social Security. [10.3]

Social Work (Scotland) - Access to Personal Files Act 1987: Social Work Regulations. Social Work Services Group, Scotlish Office. [31.3]

Solicitors (Scotland) - The Practice of the Solicitor Profession in Scotland. Scotlish Office. [23,11.87]

Sport - Sport in the Community: which ways forward? Sports Council. [15.7.87]

Sport - Sport and recreation policies. Department of the Environment. [19.11.87]

Sport and Leisure - Competition in the management of local authority sport and leisure facilities. Sport and Recreation Division, Department of the Environment. [28.9.87]

Sport and Leisure - Competition in the management of local authority sport and leisure facilities: the Local Government (Competition in Sports and Leisure Facilities) Order. Sport and Leisure Division (B), Department of the Environment, Scottish Education Department and Welsh Office. [14.11]

Summertime - A consultation note. Home Office. [31.3]

Taxation - Discussions on a Protocol to amend the United Kingdom/India Double Taxation Convention. Policy Division, Inland Revenue. [7.9.87]

Taxation - Review of taxation of life assurance. Inland Revenue. [20.6]

Taxation - Keith: Further Proposals. Further proposals in response to the recommendations of the Keith Committee on income tax, capital gains tax and corporation tax. Inland Revenue. [1.8]

Taxation - OECD and Council of Europe Convention for mutual administrative assistance in tax matters. Inland Revenue. [4.3]

Taxation - Tax appeals and other proceedings: place of hearing by general commissioners. Inland Revenue. [9.11.87]

Taxation - Residence in the United Kingdom: the scope of UK taxation for individuals. Inland Revenue. [28.7]

Taxation (Northern Ireland) - Tax appeals: a system of General Commissioners of Income Tax for Northern Ireland. Inland Revenue. [4.8.87]

Telecommunications - British Telecom's prices. OFTEL. [27.1]

Telecommunications - DNICs: the allocation of a scarce resource. OFTEL. [3.5]

Telecommunications - PTO Contract terms and conditions. OFTEL. [11.8.87]

Telecommunications - Draft Standards for telecommunication equipment. Department of Trade and Industry. [11.7]

Trade Descriptions Act - Trade Descriptions Act 1972: possible successor regime. Department of Trade and Industry. [18.12.87]

**Trade Law** - Proposed changes to the law governing international commercial arbitration. Department of Trade and Industry. [29.10.87]

Trade Practices - Review of Restrictive Trade Practices Policy. Cm 331 (0101033125) [9.3]

Trade Unions - Draft statutory code of practice on trade union industrial action balloting. Department of Employment. [3.11]

Transport - Traffic and Parking: Tapwork Report. Department of Transport. [21.7.87]

Transport - Goods Vehicles (Plating and Testing) Regulations 1988. Department of Transport. [29.10.87]

Transport - Passenger Car Fuel Consumption Amendment Order. Department of Transport. [1.9.87]

Transport - Vehicle Registration Numbers: possible alternatives to the present system. [24.8.87]

Transport - Setting up a New Unified Driver Licensing System in Great Britain. Department of Transport. [8.1]

Transport - Dual speed vehicles for disabled people. Disability Unit, Department of Transport. [7:3]

Transport - Sale of attractive registration numbers. Vehicle Inquiry Unit, Driver and Vehicle Licensing Centre. [30.3]

Transport - Motorcycles (Eye Protectors) (Amendment) (No 2) Regulations 1988. Department of Transport. [21.3]

Transport - Autoguide: pilot stage proposals. Department of Transport. [14.4]

Transport - Tachograph Repairs. Department of Transport. [1.6]

Transport - A strategy for the Reduction of Bridge Bashing. Report by a working party. (0115508600) [28.7]

Transport - Motor Cycle Exhaust Systems Regulations 198... Department of Transport. [9.3]

Transport - Draft specification for leg protectors. Department of Transport. [22.7.87]

Transport - Motor Vehicles (Tests) (Amendment) (No 3) Regulations 1988. Department of Transport. [20.7]

Transport - Proposed amendment of the Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations 1986, Department of Transport. [22.2]

Transport - Road Vehicles Lighting Regulations 1988. Department of Transport. [16.2]

Transport - Motor Fuel (Lead Content of Petrol) (Amendment) Regulations 1988. Department of Transport. [1.11]

Transport - Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) (Amendment) (No 2) Regulations 1988: Motor Cycle Noise Limits. Department of Transport. [10.10]

Transport - Traffic Signs. Review of TSRGD 1981. Department of Transport. [14.10]

Transport - Proposed amendment of the Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations 1986. Department of Transport. [9.8]

Transport - Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations: speed limiters. Department of Transport. [11.8]

Treasure Trove - A consultation paper on portable antiquities. Department of the Environment. [12.2]

Unit Trusts - Draft regulations for unit trusts authorised under the Financial Services Act 1986. Department of Trade and Industry. [27.7.87]

VAT - Value Added Tax: Review of supplies of warehoused goods. VAT International Division, HM Customs and Excise. [5.11.87]

VAT - Value Added Tax - Treatment of Directors (Input Tax). HM Customs and Excise. [16.11.87]

VAT - Draft proposed Value Added Tax (Annual Accounting) Regulations 1988. HM Customs and Excise. [1.2]

VAT - VAT on Non-Domestic Construction. HM Customs and Excise. [22.6]

VAT - VAT Infraction proceedings: European Court Judgement. HM Customs & Excise. [30.6]

Water Industry - National Rivers Authority: Government's proposals for a public regulatory body in a privatised water industry. Department of the Environment. [16.7.87]

Water Industry - Inputs of dangerous substances to water: proposals for a unified system of control. Department of the Environment. [28.7]

Water (Wales) - Guidance on implementation of fluoridation schemes. Welsh Office. [18.2]

Weights and Measures - Cubic Measures (Ballast and Agricultural Materials) (Amendment) Regulations. National Weights and Measures Laboratory, Department of Trade and Industry. [6.10.87]

Weights and Measures - Measuring equipment: liquid fuel and lubricants regulations. National Weights and Measures Laboratory, Department of Trade and Industry. [28.7.87]

Weights and Measures - Measuring Equipment (Cold-Water Meters) Regulations. National Weights and Measures Laboratory, Department of Trade and Industry. [19.11.87]

# PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICE FACTSHEETS

No 1	The Parliamentary Stages of a Government Bill
No 2	The Outlawries Bill
No 3	The Procedural Changes agreed on 31 October 1979
No 4	Private Members' Bills Procedure
No 5	Women in the House of Commons
No 6	The Post 1979 Departmental Select Committee Structure
No 7	All-Party and Registered Groups in the House of Commons
No 8	The Glorious Revolution
No 9	The Procedural Changes agreed on 30th October 1980
No 10	A Selective Booklist on the House of Commons for the Non-Specialist Reader
No 11	The Norman Shaw Buildings
No 12	The Portcullis
No 13	House of Commons Green
No 14	Statutory Instruments
No 15	Northern Ireland Legislation
No 16	Statistical Digest of By-Election Results 1979-1983
No 17	Members' Pay and Allowances
No 18	The Procedural Changes of 19th July 1982, 23 May 1985, and Supply Procedure of the
	House
No 19	Command Papers
No 20	House of Commons Papers
No 21	The Speaker
No 22	General Election Results 9 June 1983
No 23	The Guillotine in the House of Commons
No 24	The Father of the House
No 25	Church of England Measures
No 26	User's Guide to the Vote Bundle
No 27	By-Election Results since the General Election of June 1983
No 28	Sittings of the House
No 29	The Weekly Information Bulletin: A User's Guide
No 30	Early Day Motions
No 31	Ministerial Salaries
No 32	Public Petitions in the House of Commons
No 33	Private Bills
No 34	The Chiltern Hundreds
No 35	Hybrid Bills
No 36	The Procedural Changes of 27 February 1986
No 37	Order Confirmation, Provisional Order, and Special Procedure Order Confirming Bills
No 38	House of Commons Library Deposited Papers and other Unpublished Papers
No 39	A Brief Chronology of the House of Commons
No 40	Broadcasting Proceedings of the House of Commons
No 41	You and Your MP
No 42	The Official Report, House of Commons
No 43	Standing Committees
No 44	Tracing Acts of Parliament
No 45	Divisions
No 46	Questions
No 47	General Election Results 11 June 1987
No 48	The Palace of Westminster
No 49	The House of Commons and the Raising of Taxation: Budgets and Financial Documents
No 50	The House of Commons Library Department
No 51	The Clerk of the House
No 52	Some Traditions and Customs of the House of Commons

130

Us

# STATE OF THE PARTIES

After	the	General	Election,	June	1987
VIIICA	uro	CICIICIA	ERCHOII,	June	1987.

Conservative	375	Scottish National Party	3
Labour	229	Plaid Cymru	3
Liberal	17	Social Democratic & Labour Party	3
Ulster Unionists	9	Ulster Popular Unionist	1
Social Democratic Party	5	Sinn Fein	1
Ulster Democratic Unionist Party	3	The Speaker	1
		Total	650

The total number of women MPs elected was 41

#### At Prorogation on 15 November 1988

Conservative	373	Social Democratic Party	3
Labour	226	Ulster Democratic Unionist Party	3
Social and Liberal Democrats	19	Ulster Popular Unionist	1
Ulster Unionists	9	Sinn Fein	1*
Scottish National Party	4	Vacant seat (Epping Forest)	1
Plaid Cymru	3	The Speaker and 3 Deputies+	4
Social Democratic & Labour Party	3		

Total 650

The total number of women MPs is 41

SECTION E2

# **BY-ELECTIONS AND NEW MPs**

Vacancy	Cause	By Election	New Member	Date of Introduction	Maiden Speech
Kensington	Death of Sir B Rhys Williams (Con) (18.5.88)	14.7.88	Mr D Fishburn (Con)	19.7.88	25.10.88
Epping Forest	Death of Sir J Biggs- Davison (Con) (17.9.88)	pending (at Proroga	tion)		
Glasgow Govan	Resignation of Rt Hon Bruce Millan (Lab) (18.10.88)	10.11.88	Mr J Sillars (SNP)	14.11.88	*

<sup>\*</sup> If a Member returned at a by-election has been a Member previously, the date of the maiden speech is, of course, inapplicable.

<sup>\*</sup> Do not normally vote \* Has not taken seat.

#### **DELEGATIONS TO INTERNATIONAL ASSEMBLIES**

#### NORTH ATLANTIC ASSEMBLY

Johnson Smith, Sir Geoffrey, MP (Leader)
Ardwick, Lord
Banks, Mr Robert, MP
Beith, Mr Alan, MP
Browne, Mr John, MP
Cartwright, Mr John, MP
Cook, Mr Frank, MP
Duffy, Mr Patrick, MP
Emery, Sir Peter, MP
George, Mr Bruce, MP

Goodhart, Sir Philip MP
Jopling, Rt Hon Michael, MP
Lamond, Mr James, MP
Lucas of Chilworth, Lord
Kimberley, Earl of
McCrindle, Mr Robert, MP
Mates, Mr Michael, MP (substitute)
Ridsdale, Sir Julian, MP
Wiggin, Mr Jerry, MP

# COUNCIL OF EUROPE & WESTERN EUROPEAN UNION

#### Representatives

Finsberg, Sir Geoffrey, MP (Leader)
Coleman, Mr Donald, MP
Cox, Mr Tom, MP
Fenner, Dame Peggy, MP
Garrett, Mr Ted, MP
Hardy, Mr Peter, MP
Hill, Mr James, MP
Jessel, Mr Toby, MP
Johnston, Sir Russell, MP
Kinnoull, Earl of
Morris, Mr Michael, MP
Parry, Mr Robert, MP
Shelton, Mr William, MP
Smith, Sir Dudley, MP
Speed, Mr Keith, MP
Stokes, Mr John, MP
Wilkinson, Mr John, MP

#### Substitutes

Atkinson, Mr David, MP Bowden, Mr Andrew, MP Faulds, Mr Andrew, MP Gale, Mr Roger, MP Howell, Mr Ralph, MP Hunt, Mr John, MP Kirkhill, Lord Lambie, Mr David, MP Litherland, Mr Bob, MP Lord, Mr Michael, MP Mackie of Benshie, Lord Newall, Lord Rathbone, Mr Tim, MP Redmond, Mr Martin, MP Rodney, Lord Ruddock, Ms Joan, MP Stewart, Mr Allan, MP Thompson, Mr Jack, MP

#### SECTION E4

# MEMBERS OF THE HOUSE OF COMMONS WHO ARE ALSO MEMBERS OF THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

As at Prorogation, 15 November 1988

## Name, UK Constituency and Party

Cryer, Mr Bob (Bradford, S) Lab
Curry, Mr David (Skipton & Ripon) Con
Griffiths, Mr Win (Bridgend) Lab
Hume, Mr John (Foyle) SDLP
Marshall, Mr John (Hendon S) Con
Paisley, Rev Ian (Antrim, N) UDUP
Guin, Joyce (Gateshead, E) Lab
Taylor, Rt Hon John D (Strangford) UU

#### European Constituency

Sheffield
Essex, North East
South Wales
Northern Ireland
London, North
Northern Ireland
Tyne & Wear
Northern Ireland

# COMPLETE LIST OF MAIDEN SPEECHES MADE IN THE HOUSE OF COMMONS SINCE THE GENERAL ELECTION OF JUNE 1987

	CAN'S	in south and its
Name & Party	Constituency	Date
ABBOTT, Ms Diane (Lab)	Hackney North & Stoke Newington	16.11.87
ALLASON, Rupert (Con)	Torbay	3.7.87
ALLEN, Graham (Lab)	Nottingham, North	25.6.87
AMOS, Alan (Con)	Hexham	1.12.87
ARBUTHNOT, James (Con)	Wanstead & Woodford	20.7.87
ARMSTRONG, Ms Hilary (Lab)	Durham, North West	29.6.87
ARNOLD, Jacques (Con)	Gravesham	9.7.87
BARNES, Harry (Lab)	Derbyshire, North East	13.7.87
BATTLE, John (Lab)	Leeds, West	6.7.87
BENNETT, Nicholas (Con)	Pembroke	2.7.87
BLUNKETT, David (Lab)	Sheffield, Brightside	25.6.87
BOATENG, Paul (Lab)	Brent, South	26.6.87
BOSWELL, Tim (Con)	Daventry	8.7.87
BOWIS, John (Con)	Battersea	13.7.87
BRADLEY, Keith (Lab)	Manchester, Withington	8.7.87
BRAZIER, Julian (Con)	Canterbury	26.6.87
BRUCE, Ian (Con)	Dorset, South	29.6.87
BUCKLEY, George (Lab)	Hemsworth	20.11.87
BURNS, Simon (Con)	Chelmsford	2.11.87
BUTLER, Chris (Con)	Warrington, South	17.7.87
CAMPBELL, Menzies (Lib)	Fife, North East	13.7.87
CAMPBELL, Ronnie (Lab)	Blyth Valley	30.10.87
CARRINGTON, Matthew (Con)	Fulham	2.7.87
COOMBS, Anthony (Con)	Wyre Forest	17.7.87
COUSINS, Jim (Lab)	Newcastle upon Tyne, Central	12.11.87
CRAN, James (Con)	Beverley	1.7.87
CUMMINGS, John (Lab)	Easington	16.7.87
CURRY, David (Con)	Skipton & Ripon	18.11.87
DARLING, Alistair (Lab)	Edinburgh, Central	6.7.87
DAVIES, Quentin (Con)	Stamford & Spalding	8.7.87
DAVIS, David (Con)	Boothferry	5.11.87
DAY, Stephen (Con)	Cheadle	3.11.87
DEVLIN, Tim (Con)	Stockton, South	4.11.87
DORAN, Frank (Lab)	Aberdeen, South	29.10.87
DUNNACHIE, Jimmy (Lab)	Glasgow, Pollok	26.6.87
EVANS, David (Con)	Welwyn & Hatfield	6.7.87
FEARN, Ronnie (Lib)	Southport	3.7.87
WORLDOOM, Tay ON	Isle of Wight	6.7.87
FIELD, Barry (Con)	isio of Wight	337 67

FLYNN, Paul (Lab)	Newport, West	1.7.87
FRENCH, Douglas (Con)	Gloucester	30.11.87
FYFE, Mrs Maria (Lab)	Glasgow, Maryhill	30.6.87
GALBRAITH, Sam (Lab)	Strathkelvin & Bearsden	23.10.87
GALLOWAY, George (Lab)	Glasgow, Hillhead	29.6.87
GILL, Christopher (Con)	Ludlow	23.10.87
GOODSON-WICKES, Dr Charles (Con)	Wimbledon	14.1.88
GORDON, Mrs Mildred (Lab)	Bow & Poplar	15.7.87
GORMAN, Mrs Teresa (Con)	Billericay	1.7.87
GRAHAM, Thomas (Lab)	Renfrew, West & Inverclyde	29.10.87
GRANT, Bernie (Lab)	Tottenham	6.7.87
GREENWAY, John (Con)	Ryedale	3.7.87
GRIFFITHS, Nigel (Lab)	Edinburgh, South	20.7.87
GRIFFITHS, Win (Lab)	Bridgend	29.6.87
HARGREAVES, Andrew (Con)	Birmingham, Hall Green	30.11.87
HENDERSON, Douglas (Lab)	Newcastle upon Tyne, North	2.7.87
HICKS, Mrs Maureen (Con)	Wolverhampton, North East	1.12.87
HINCHLIFFE, David (Lab)	Wakefield	21.10.87
HOOD, James (Lab)	Clydesdale	8.7.87
HUGHES, John (Lab)	Coventry, North East	26.11.87
HUGHES, Bob (Con)	Harrow, West	2.7.87
ILLSLEY, Eric (Lab)	Barnsley, Central	25.6.87
INGRAM, Adam (Lab)	East Kilbride	20.7.87
IRVINE, Michael (Con)	lpswich	29.6.87
JACK, Michael (Con)	Fylde	29.6.87
JANMAN, Tim (Con)	Thurrock	9.7.87
JONES, Ieuan Wyn (PC)	Ynys Mon	1.7.87
JONES, Martyn (Lab)	Clwyd, South West	8.7.87
KIRKHOPE, Timothy (Con)	Leeds, North East	1.7.87
KNAPMAN, Roger (Con)	Stroud	16.12.87
LIVINGSTONE, Ken (Lab)	Brent, East	7.7.87
McALLION, John (Lab)	Dundee, East	30.6.87
McAVOY, Thomas (Lab)	Glasgow, Rutherglen	21.10.87
McCARTNEY, Ian (Lab)	Makerfield	30.6.87
MacDONALD, Calum (Lab)	Western Isles	8.7.87
McFALL, John (Lab)	Dumbarton	2.7.87
McGRADY, Eddie (SDLP)	Down, South	7.7.87
McLEISH, Henry (Lab)	Fife Central	20.7.87
MAHON, Mrs Alice (Lab)	Halifax	26.6.87
MANS, Keith (Con)	Wyre	20.7.87
MARSHALL, John (Con)	Hendon, South	26.11.87

10

H

М

R Si Si

MARTIN, David (Con)	Portsmouth, South	27.10.87
MARTLEW, Eric (Lab)	Carlisle	6.7.87
MEALE, Alan (Lab)	Mansfield	3.7.87
MICHAEL, Alun (Lab)	Cardiff, South & Penarth	2.7.87
MICHIE, Mrs Ray (Lib)	Argyll & Bute	13.7.87
MITCHELL, Andrew (Con)	Gedling	20.7.87
MOONIE, Dr Lewis (Lab)	Kirkcaldy	16.7.87
MORGAN, Rhodri (Lab)	Cardiff West	8.7.87
MORLEY, Elliot (Lab)	Glanford & Scunthorpe	6.7.87
MOSS, Malcolm (Con)	Cambridgeshire, North East	30.10.87
MOWLAM, Marjorie (Lab)	Redcar	9.7.87
MULLIN, Christopher (Lab)	Sunderland, South	1.7.87
MURPHY, Paul (Lab)	Torfaen	3.7.87
NICHOLSON, David (Con)	Taunton	30.11.87
NICHOLSON, Emma (Con)	Devon West & Torridge	9.7.87
PAICE, James (Con)	Cambridgeshire, South East	3.11.87
PATNIÇK, Irvine (Con)	Sheffield Hallam	17.7.87
PORTER, David (Con)	Waveney	30.6.87
PRIMAROLO, Ms Dawn (Lab)	Bristol, South	12.11.87
QUIN, Ms Joyce (Lab)	Gateshead, East	30.6.87
REDWOOD, John (Con)	Wokingham	29.6.87
REID, Dr John (Lab)	Motherwell, North	8.7.87
RIDDICK, Graham (Con)	Colne Valley	13.7.87
RUDDOCK, Mrs Joan (Lab)	Lewisham, Deptford	30.6.87
SALMOND, Alex (SNP)	Banff & Buchan	29.6.87
SHAW, David (Con)	Dover	1.7.87
SHEPHARD, Mrs Gillian (Con)	Norfolk, South West	23.10.87
SMITH, Andrew (Lab)	Oxford, East	20.7.87
STEINBERG, Gerry (Lab)	City of Durham	30.6.87
SUMMERSON, Hugo (Con)	Walthamstow	4.11.87
TAYLOR, Ian (Con)	Esher	13.7.87
TREDINNICK, David (Con)	Bosworth	10.7.87
TURNER, Dennis (Lab)	Wolverhampton, South	2.7.87
VAZ, Keith (Lab)	Leicester, East	3.7.87
WALL, Pat (Lab)	Bradford, North	1.7.87
WALLEY, Ms Joan (Lab)	Stoke on Trent, North	6.7.87
WIDDECOMBE, Miss Ann (Con)	Maidstone	28.10.87
WILLIAMS, Alan (Lab)	Carmathen	30.10.87
WILSHIRE, David (Con)	Spelthorne	6.7.87
WILSON, Brian (Lab)	Cunninghame, North	13.7.87
WORTHINGTON, Tony (Lab)	Clydebank & Milngavie	25.6.87
WRAY, James (Lab)	Glasgow, Provan	13.7.87
	DESCRIPTION ROOM, NOT THE OWN OF THE PARTY O	



HMSO publications are available from:

#### **HMSO Publications Centre**

(Mail and telephone orders only) PO Box 276, London SW8 5DT Telephone orders 01-873 9090 General enquiries 01-873 0011 (queuing system in operation for both numbers)

#### **HMSO Bookshops**

HMSO Booksnops
49 High Holborn, London WC1V 6HB 01-873 0011 (Counter service only)
258 Broad Street, Birmingham B1 2HE 021-643 3740
Southey House, 33 Wine Street, Bristol BS1 2BQ (0272) 264306
9-21 Princess Street, Manchester M60 8AS 061-834 7201
80 Chichester Street, Belfast BT1 4JY (0232) 238451
71 Lothian Road, Edinburgh EH3 9AZ 031-228 4181

#### HMSO's Accredited Agents

(see Yellow Pages)

And through good booksellers